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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint ventures and associate, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2023, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors, on standalone audited financial
statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associate, referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consclidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures and associate as at 31 March 2023, and their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its joint ventures and associate in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidences obtained by us and by other auditors in respect of their report referred
to in the other matter paragraph section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

& Co™ge Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
Jwidymation. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there
is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of
the Group including its associate and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors and those charged with
governance of the entities included in the Group and of its joint ventures and associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have

been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management of the
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures and its associate is responsible for
assessing the ability of their respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors and Management of the companies included in the
Group, its joint ventures and its associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the respective entities.

ditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bf objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
itements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group, its joint ventures and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group and its associate and joint venture to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

vi. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group, its associate and joint venture of which we
are the independent auditors to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditor's. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consoclidated financial statements, which
have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 1,36,939 lakhs as at
March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs 2,884 fakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 196.68
lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss after tax of Rs.
4,428.81 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one associate and two joint ventures, whose financial
statements, other financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

2. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates is based solely on the audit report of such other
auditors / management accounts, and the procedure performed by us as stated under
‘Basis for Opinien’ paragraph.

3. Our opinion and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, are not
modified in respect of these matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, [based

gompanies and joint ventures companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other
atter’ paragraph] we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.
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ii. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act [based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the ‘other matter’
paragraph], we report that;

a.

We/ the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors except in case of one
joint venture where the backup of books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India during the year;

. The Consoclidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Fiow
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements;

. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding

Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139
of the Act, of its subsidiaries, its joint ventures and its associate of such nature, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group with reference to consolidated financial statements as on March 31, 2023 and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B’ to this report which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding company,
subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and its associate, incorporated in India;

With respect to the matter to be included in Auditor's report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ‘Overall maximum managerial
remuneration and managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’
is not applicable to the Group and its joint ventures as these being private company.
However, based on the consideration of reports of statutory auditor of the associate, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided

by the associate is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act;

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors and management

Indi
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certification on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate:

KOLKATA (H.0) NEW DELHi CHENNAI MUMB!

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures —
refer note 48 and note 44 to the consolidated financial statements;

The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group, its joint venture and associate in accordance to the
provision of the Act, and rules made there under.

() The respective management of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate (which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act) have represented to us or to their
respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 59 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint
ventures or associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate (‘Ultimate

Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

{b) The respective management of the Group, its joint ventures and associate whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us or their
respective auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief , as disclosed in the
Note 59 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries or joint venture or associate from
any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate shall, either directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report that nothing
has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The Holding Company has investment in a partnership firm which is considered as a
subsidiary for the purpose of consolidation. As this subsidiary is non-corporate entity,
reporting requirement of Rule 11(e) and Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.

..
>
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v. The Board of Directors of the Group have not declared or paid dividend for the year
and one subsidiary being a partnership firm, accordingly, compliance to section 123
of the Act to the extent, it applies to the declaration of dividend is not required.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILW9765

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

According to information and explanations given to us, following companies are included in
consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports under

Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO") which have been reproduced as per the
requirement of the Guidance Note on CAROQO:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued
by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements
to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the
Holding Company, we report that in respect of those companies where audits have been
completed under section 143 of the Act, there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the
respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the consolidated
financial statements except for the following:

Holding Clause number of
s Company/ the CARO report
r.
- Name CIN Subsidiary/ which contains
0.
Joint Venture/ | qualification or
Associate adverse remarks
Runwal Developers Holding iii (b}, iii(c), iii(f) &
1 U70100MH1988PTC046631 .
Pvt Ltd company vii(c)
Dhruva Woollen Mills ifi(c), vii {b), vii(c) &
2 ) o U17110MH1952PTC008960 o
Private Limited Subsidiary ix {c)
Wheelabrator Alloy iii(c), iii(d),ii(f) & wii
3 ] o U99999MH1959PLC011472 i
Castings Limited Associate (c)
R Mall Developers
-_ \ Private Limited U45201MH2006PTC163273 | Joint venture i (c), vii (a) & vii (b)

urther, according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the
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CARO report relating to them has not been issued by their auditors. Following are the basic
details of the same:

Sr. Name CIN Holding Company/
No. Subsidiary/ Joint
Venture/ Associate
1 Avalor Developers U70100MH1988PTC046631 Subsidiary
Private Limited
2 Sanabh Ventures UB8100MH2023PTC398835 WOS during the
Private Limited period 13.3.2023 to
30.3.2023
3 Runwal Constructions Not applicable as being Subsidiary
partnership firm

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILWO765
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the consolidated
financial statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reqguirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint venture and associate (read together
with the paragraph of other matter as specified in Annexure B) as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its joint ventures
and associate, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company internal financial controls
over financtal reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
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audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Group, its
joint ventures and associate which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that :

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Holding Company’s;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Holding
Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Holding Company's assets that could have-a material effect
on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Group, its joint ventures and associate which are companies
incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controis
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, in so far as it relates to two joint ventures and one associate which is audited by other
auditor, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such joint ventures and
associate. Further as subsidiary, a partnership firm is consolidated and report under section
143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
is not applicable to it as it is not a company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership No: 123314
UDIN: 23123314BGWILW9765

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046431

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Parliculars Note As at i o
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Assetls
Non-cumrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 7.581.80 7.821.93
Capital work-in-progress 4 58.14 1,600.22
Right-of-use asset 5 106.09 107.60
Investment property 6 52,842.13 51,990.10
Other Intangible asset % 1.42 4.44
Intangible asset under development 8 212.26 -
Goodwill on consolidation 9 0.22 0.22
Equity accounted investees 10 26,374.57 30,803.38
Financial assets
i} Other investments 1 348.49 63.06
iij Other financial assets 12 1,622.18 1,353.42
Nan cument tax assets 9,848.96 8,955.35
Olher non-current assets 13 22.34 20.25
Tolal non cuirent asset 99,018.60 1,02,719.97
Cument assets
Inventories 14 2,28,447 91 1,70,780.27
Financial assets
i) Investments 15 7.000.00 8,000.00
ii) Trade receivables 16 1,437.68 2,035.66
iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 17 10,478.46 15,275.09
iv} Bank balance other than {iiij above 18 2,597.04 1,371.94
v} Loans 19 8,608.12 8,030.40
vi) Other financial assets 20 1,385.44 7,554.96
Other current assets 21 21,050.83 26,717.93
Tolal current assets 2,81,005.48 2,39.766.25
Total assets 3,80,024.08 3.42.486.22
—
Equity and llabllifles
Equlty
Equity share capital 22 2,191.37 62.61
Other equity 23 1,15,606.62 1,15,925.90
Equity aftributable to shareholders of the company 1,17,797.99 1,15,988.51
Non-conltrolling Interest 26,465.14 24,023.23
Tolal equity 1.44,263.12 1,40,011.74
Non-current llabliiies
Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 24 64,942.37 51,518.12
ii} Lease liabilities 25 3.48 -
Provislons 26 177.25 171.17
Deferred tax liability {net) 27 15,819.40 18.611.31
Total non current llabliitles 80,942.50 70,300.60
Curmrent liabllitles
FInancial liabilitles
i) Borrowings 28 8,622.51 22,381.98
i) Lease Llabilities 29 1.23 -
iii) Trade payables 30
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 1,359.61 493.65
{b) total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 11,983.28 9,050.94
Iv) Other financlal liabilitles 31 5,202.07 6,056.39
Other current llabilitles 32 1,23,006.23 89,416.16
Provisions 33 199.82 188.59
Current tax llabilitles 4,443.71 4,586.17
Total current llabliities 1,54,818.46 1,32,173.88
Total llablittles 2,35,760.96 2,02.474.48
Tolal equity and liabilities 3.80,024.08 3,42,486.22 |
Summary of significant accouniing policles 2
The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the consolidated financlal statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors ﬂp
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(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC044631

For the year ended

For the year ended

For Singhl & Co.

Membership No.123314
Date - 29-09-2023
|Place - Mumbal

Parficulars Note 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 34 30,319.08 76,874.54
Otherincome 35 6,163.65 5,693.44
Total Income 36,482.73 82,567.98
Expenses
Cost of construction and development expenses 36 68,435.13 69,091.34
Purcahse of stock in trade 37 501.00 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction
work-in-progress 38 (57,476.27) (12,315.00)
Employee benefits expenses 39 1,275.33 1,16215
Finance costs 40 3,220.04 2,344.55
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 41 1,424.16 979.36
Other expenses 42 10,281.62 4,213.66
Total Expenses 27,661.01 65,476.06
Proflt before share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures and 8,821.72 17.091.92
assoclates and fax
Tax expenses
Income tax {2,901.27) [3.690.64)
Excess/ Short provision of tax relating to earlier years {53.86) -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge 2.796.00 (19.660.82)
Short / {Excess) tax of previous years - 0.23
Total tax expenses (159.13) {23,351.23)|
Profit after tax 8.662.59 (56,259.31)
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures and associate {4,428.81) (712.24]
Profit tor the year 4,233.78 (6.971.55)
Other Comprehensive Income
(1) #ems that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses 1341 10.55
(1) Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclasslified
to profit or loss {4.10) (2.96)
Share of other comprehensive income in associate and
joint venture 8.29 5.18
Total other comprehensive Income for the year 17.60 12.77
Total comprehensive Income for the year 4,251.38 !5!9‘58.78!|
Proflt for the year affributable to:
{i) Owners of the company 1,792.80 {12,517.80)
{ily Non-controlling interest 2,440.98 5,546.25
Other Comprehensive Income for the year atiributable to:
(i} Owners of the company 16.68 15.35
(i) Non-controlling Interest 0.93 {2.58)
Tolal Comprehensive Income for the year aftributable to:
{i} Owners of the company 1,809.48 {12,502.45)
{ii) Non-controlling Interest 24419 5.543.67
|Eamings per equity share (amount In Rs.) 43
Basic(face value of Re.1 each) 1.90 (3.13)
Diluted (face value of Re.1 each)
Summary of significant accounting policles 2
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the consolidated financlal statements.
As per our report of even date attached behalf of the board ot directors
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC046631
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended For the year ended

Periiculan 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Operating actlvities
Profit before tax 8,821.72 17,091.92
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 1,424.16 979.37
Finance costs 3,220.04 2,344.56
Deferred Expenses from joint development arrangement 1,098.68 5,505.49
Provision for expected credit loss 261.71 479.43
Fixed assets written off 297
Prov for Grat & leave encash -OCI adjustment 30.72 43.44
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement (1,098.48) (5,505.49)
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset (22.76) (1.44)
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund (15.72) (1.64)
Finance income (1,065.48) (687.22)
Dividend income - (0.02)
Sundry balances written off (3,877.15) (3.872.41)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 93.44 195.02
Operating profit before working capital changes 8,870.68 16,573.98
Working capltal adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 362.85 (952.40)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (51,687.78) 5,095.76
(Increase)/decrease in other curent and non current financial assets 6,356.69 2,823.48
(Increase)/decrease in other curent and non current assets 5,665.01 (12,477.77)
Increase /{decrease) in trade payables 3,798.30 2,661.36
Increase /(decrease) in other cument financial liabilities (1,005.00) (10,769.58)
Increase /(decrease) in other current liabilities 36,275.10 823.30
Changes due to working capltal movements (234.83) (12,795.85)
Income tax paid {3,991.20) (2,670.19)
Net cash flows from / (used In) operating activities 4,644.65 (5,892.08)
Investing activitles
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 93.28 7.06
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (348.41) (180.59)
Purchase of investment property (205.76) 12.75
(Increase)/decrease in right to use assets (113.57)
Advances against land {given)/repaid (net) - 94,82
Advance against intfangible asset under development (212.2¢) -
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm - 3.322.73
Investment in equity shares and debentures of joint venture - (1,003.00)
Investment in units of mutual funds (268.68) (61.25)
Proceed from investments 1,000.00 =
Increase - investment in bank deposit (1,225.10) (1,565.88)
Loans and advances to related parties and others (given)/repaid (net) (577.72) 4,194.80
Addition to cash and cash equivalent on account of acquisition of - 340.44
subsidiary
Dividend received - 0.02
Interest received (finance income} 610.17 444.12
Net cash flows from / (used in) Investing activities (1,134.48) 5,492.45
Financing activities
Interest paid (8,128.33) (3,843.21)
Equity share issuance cost (net of tax) - (3.14)
Amount paid to retiring partners - (2,807.61)
Lease rental and interest payment (1.71)
Repayment of non current borrowings (18,170.25)
Proceeds from non cumrent borrowings 9.607.95 26,865.23
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings (net) {10,565.71) 1.413.24
Net cash flows from / (used In) financing activities (9.087.80) 3,454.26
Net Increase / (decrease) In cash and cash equlivalents (5.577.63) 3,054.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,986.43 11,931.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9.408.80




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTC0464631

(All amounfs in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Componants of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

a) Balance with banks in current accounts 7,661.77 2,674.02
b) Balance with banks in deposit accounts with original maturity less than thre 2,759.50 11,143.17
¢) Cheque-in-hand - 1,400.00
d) Cash on hand 57.19 57.90
Total 10,478.4% 15,275.09
Less: Book overdrait considered as cash and cash equivalent for cash flow (1,069.66) (288.66)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,408.80 14,986.43
Notes:

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of
Cash Flows'.
b) Reconciliations of liablities arising from financing activities :

As at As at
RarNevidn 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 73,900.10 38,817.69
Cash flow (957.76) 10,108.22
On account of business acquisition 24,996.50
Non cash changes 622.54 (22.31)
Balance at the end of the year 73,564.88 73,900.10
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. For Runwail Developers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants /
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. General information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Runwal Developers
Private Limited {the Holding Company), its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group), associates and
jointly controlled entity for the year ended 315t March, 2023.

The Holding Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled
in India having ifs registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor, Off. Eastern Express
Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2023, were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated 29t September,
2023.

Significant Accounting Policies and notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are
intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure and a guide to better understanding of
the financial position of the Group. Recognising this purpose, the Group has disclosed only such
policies and notes which fairly present the needed disclosures.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
|. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noftified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013,
{Ind AS compliant Schedule lll), as applicable to this financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the significant accounting
policies and measurement bases summarized as below. These accounting policies have been
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements,
except where the Group has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition
to Ind AS.

b. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following:
* Certain Financial instruments are measured at fair value

c. Preparation of financial statement

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act). The Statement of Cash Flows has. been prepared and presented in accordance with
Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". The disclosures with respect fo items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are presented by way of
notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the nofified Indian Accounting Standards as amended.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity, when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect the returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by
line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany
transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively.

(i) Associates/ Joint Venture

Associates or Joint Ventures are all entities over which the Group has significant influence or Joint
control but not control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights or where decisions over the relevant activities are unanimous in case of joint
venture. Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the excess of cost of investment over the proportionate
share in equity of the associate/ joint venture as at the date of acquisition of stake is identified as
goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be and included in the carrying value of the
investment in the associate/ joint venture.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in Consolidated Other
Comprehensive Income. However, the share of losses is accounted for only to the extent of the
cost of investment. Subsequent profits of such associates/ joint ventures are not accounted for
unless the accumulated losses (not accounted for by the Group) are recouped. Additional losses
are provided for to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate and joint venture to satisfy obligations of the associate and joint venture
that the Group has guaranteed or to which the Group is otherwise committed. Unrealised gains
or losses on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.

d. Current and non-current classification

The group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
redlisation in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Group's real estate operations
varies from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, project
complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities are
classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets
and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelve
months.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR") which is also the
functional currency of the Group. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Il. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the
basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financiai statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates which have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
a. Estimation of net realisable value (NRV) for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions, prices
and trends existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group based on comparable

transactions observed /identified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving
the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and
trends existing at the reporting date for similar completed property, less the estimated cost to
complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and
overruns basis the progress of the project.

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
or other available fair value indicators.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs for impdairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in
Schedule II, they are based on technical advice. Assumptions also need to be made when the
Group assesses whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the
asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assefs,
tfrends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

f. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market
wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the fair value relating to financial instruments.

g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other
contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded
as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not
provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the
likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are
not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

h. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax credits to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probability
with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the
entity and budgeted data for the future.

lll. Measurement of fair values

The Group measures financial instruments, such as certain investments at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market particioants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Group has an established conftrol framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
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third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Management assesses the
evidence obtained from third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Group uses observable
market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises fransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

IV. Property, plant and equipment & depreciation
a. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of:

i its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it fo be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the item is acquired or
as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period.

iv. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and
Equipment, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate to the period fill such assets are ready to be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to
the location and condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner intended
by Management are recognised in Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book
value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are
disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried
at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group in the year of disposal.

c. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put fo use on straight line
method as per the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment including property held as
Investment as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the date
the assets are sold or disposed.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value,

Nature of the asset Useful life
Computers 3 years
| Plant & Machinery

Solar 25 years
Windmill 22 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicle 8 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically.
d. Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any Gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised. ‘
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V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
in use by the Group, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially
at its acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an Investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The carrying amount of investment property is reviewed periodically for
impairment based on internal and external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the
carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the asset's net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assefs.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the same period.

VI. Intangible assets
a. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties and
other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

c. Amottisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the
date the asset is available to the Group for its use. The amortisation period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed atleast at the end of each
reporting period.
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The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period
Computer software (ERP) 10 years - license period
Computer software (other than ERP) 3 years

d. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

VII. Foreign currency transactions / translations

a. Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of the
respective transactions or at the confracted rates as applicable.

b. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

c. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on transiating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the
period or in previous financial statements are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise.

VIIl. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Group makes an irevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining
to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for frading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity
instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

iv. Investment in associates & joint venture

Investment in associates are measured using the equity method of accounting after initially being
recognized at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.

v. Impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently
when there is indication forimpairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
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asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Group recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
tfrade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses
or at an amount equal fo the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the inifial investment made by the Group in any other entity was not falling under the
category of an associate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such entity gets
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments" at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Group accounts for the cost of the investment in
the subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initial interest, plus any consideration
paid for the additional interest (accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Group recognises the difference between
the fair value of the initial interest at the date of obtaining control of the subsidiary and its original
consideration in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining control, the initial investment
had been measured at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI).

b. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
I. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

ili. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable tfransaction costs. All financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelied or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

¢. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassify cation is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

d. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to redlise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

IX. Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized. Other expenditure
(including borrowing costs) during construction period is inventorized to the extent the
expenditure is directly atfributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which
is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is
charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on
specific identification to the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased
specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed
projects (i) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction /development
including land held for development on which construction activities are yet to commence (i)
Transferable development rights (TDRs)

b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net redlisabie value.

c. Cost of Realty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
proportion to the revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over
under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty
construction / development includes all costs directly related to the Project (including finance
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cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by the Management which
are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project (net off
incidental recoveries / receipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from
the relevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable
development rights {TDR), construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to the
projects undertaken by the Group.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

X. Revenue recognition

a. The Group has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in this
Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identity the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for
every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the fransaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for fransferring promised goods or services
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs; or

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the conditions
in the contracts with customers.
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The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:
(i Income from Property Development

The Group has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet
the criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time
with respect to contracts for sale of residential and commercial units as and when the control is
passed on to the customers which is linked to the receipt of occupancy certificate and on issuing
the possession letter of the property. However, in those cases where the receipt of occupancy
certificate is significantly delayed after an application is made towards the respective project with
the appropriate authorities, revenue is recognised when the entire sales consideration of the
respective units are received and the soft possession for fit outs being given to customers.

(i) Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and
Development Rights as and when the control is passed on to the customers.

(iii) Income from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established as
per agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIR method).
{(v) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services fransferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.
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c. Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
if the ¢ expects to recover those costs. The Group incurs costs such as sales commission when it
enters into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the contract.

d. Joint development arrangement

The Group executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the land
owner provides land and the Group undertakes to develop properties on such land (i.e.
development right) and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Group has agreed to transfer
certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds or
certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transfer of such constructed area or revenue or
surplus in exchange of such development rights/ land is being estimated at fair value as per the
terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch of the project as the cost of development
right (Inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair value of the land cannot be
measured reliably, the revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the estimated
construction service rendered to the landowner adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred. Subsequent to initial recognition, such liability is remeasured on each
reporting period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes in the
estimate, if any.

In case of JD arrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Group
recognizes revenue only when it can reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the
performance obligation. Until such time, the Group recognizes revenue to the extent of cost
incurred, provided the Group expects to recover the costs incurred towards satisfying the
performance obligation.

Xl Income tax

a. Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profit for the period. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

c. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in OCI, in which case, the current and
deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in OCI. The Group offsets current tax assets and
current fax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the Group.

Xlt Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post-employment benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.

(i) Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Gratuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for Gratuity
is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation cerfificate provided by the actuary using Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any futurerefunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
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present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,

excluding interest) are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net
interest expense/ (income) on the net defined liability / (assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / (asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Group's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss as income or expense or recognized under Other
Comprehensive Income to the extent such actuarial gains or losses arise due to experience
adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using
a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date
on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are consistent
with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Xlll Leases
a. Where Group is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

a. Where Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

XIV Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective
borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on the
project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is no imminent certainty of
recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

XV Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise of cash and short term deposits as defined in Ind AS 7.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

XVI Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense orincome (net off any attributable taxes) relating
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

XVIl Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated fo settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Confingent liabilities are disclosed for:

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control
of the Group or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required fo settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits
has become probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Contingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the Financial Statements of
the period in which the changes occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.

XVIll Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group's other components, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
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All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Accordingly, the Group has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind
AS 108:

a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c) Power generation

Real Estate segment (RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable
Development Rights {TDRs) and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects. Lease
rental comprises the rental of properties as Shopping Malls. Power generation is through Solar and
Wind Mill.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit
or loss in the financial statements. Also, the Group's financing (including finance costs and finance
income) and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated to operating
segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner
similar to fransactions with third parties.

XIX Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the
businesses which are not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition reiated costs are
expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at
the basis indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Tax'
and Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' respectively.

b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist
at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

¢) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

Any contingent consideration fo be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments', is measured at fair value with
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changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OClI,
as appropriate.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using
the pooling of interests method as follows:

* The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

* No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

¢ The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date.

* The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the cormresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
tfransferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

* The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves
of the transferee.

* The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital
reserves.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)
Note 4
Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP)

Property, Plant and

Particulars Equipment Investment Property Total

Cost

As at 01st October, 2021 - 1,612.96 1,612.96
Add: Addition during the period - - -
Add: Transferred from Inventories - - -
Less: Capitalised during the period - (10.34) (10.34)
Less: Transferred to profit and loss - (2.40) (2.40)
As at 31st March, 2022 - 1,600.22 1,600.22
Add: Addition during the period 58.14 - 58.14
Add: Transferred from Inventories - - -
Less: Capitalised during the period - (1.600.22) {1,600.22)
Less: Transferred to profit and loss - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 58.14 - 58.14

Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Propenrty, Plant and Equipment

(CWIP) (CWIP) for a perlod of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Property, Plant and Equipment

Project in progress 58.14 - - - 58.14
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Investment Property
Project in progress o - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended = i = - -

Project In progress 58.14 - - - 58.14
Projects temporarlly suspended - - 5 - .
Total 58.14 - - - 58.14

ing schedule as at March 31, 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment

(CWIP) (CWIP) for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Property, Plant and Equipment
Project in progress = = - 2 =
Projects temporarily suspended = - = < =

Investment Property
Project in progress 7.53 42.51 99.19 1,450.98 1,600.21

Projects temporarily suspended - - ’ = D

Project In progress 7.53 42.51 99.19 1,450.98 1,600.21
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 7.53 42.51 99.19 1,450.98 1,600.21

The Company's investment property under construction consists of some commercial properties in India.

Based on the intention and business plans, commercial properties owned by the Firmis considered as being held for capital
appreciation and rental income rather than for business purposes.

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property under construction.

Capital work in progress of Property, Plant & Equipment mainly comprises of expenditure towards Electrical Equipments.

The valuation of property have been determined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registeered
Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparision technique. Under this approach the
market value has been obtained by considering value of comparable property having same utility & attraction. Under this method
average rate for estimated leasable area has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for various
factors as size, discount, rates, local attributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under
valuation. All resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2.

Capital work in progress of Investment Property mainly comprises of expenditure towards Building
lakhs) as per Fair Valuation Report.
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Note 5

Right of use asset

Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021

Additions

Disposals/Adjustments
As at 31st March, 2022

Additions

Disposals/Adjustments
As at 31 March, 2023

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals

As at 31 March, 2023

Net block

As at 31st March, 2023
As at 31st March, 2022

(Refer note - 56)

Note é

Investment Property*

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021

Adjustment due to acquisition of subsidiary

Additions

Addition due to revaluation

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022

Additions
Reclassification
Disposals

As at 31st March, 2023

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021

Adjustment due to acquisition of subsidiary
Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022

Depreciation charge for the year
Depreciation on Reclassified assets

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2023

Net block

As at 31st March, 2023
As at 31st March, 2022

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Land Total
113.57 113.57
113.57 113.57
5.80 5.80
119.37 119.37
5.97 597
5.97 5.97
7.31 7.31
13.28 13.28
106.09 106.09
107.60 107.60
Land Building Total
- 5,008.31 5,008.31
909.30 9,388.55 10,297.85
151.95 - 151.95
8,443.49 30,095.00 38,538.49
- (1,061.25) -1,061.25
9.504.74 43,430.61 52,935.35
- 1,805.98 1,805.98
(111.35) 111.35 «
9.,393.39 45,347.94 54,741.33
- 460.35 460.35
- 410.36 410.36
- 74.54 74.54
- 945.25 945.25
- 952.77 952.77
- 1.18 1.18
- 1,899.20 1,899.20
\&C0
n\9,393.39 43,448.74 52,842.13
©$,504.74 42,485.36 51,990.10
5
& >
Lartared ™™
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

Particul For the Year ended For the Year ended
EIMEHICES 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Rental income derived from investment

property 2,293.03 1,107.74

Direct operating expenses 1,156.90 932.12

Profit/(loss) arls.ln.g from investment properly 1,136.13 175.62

before depreciation

Less: Depreciation (953.95) 484.90
182.18 (309.28)

Profit/(Loss) arising from investment propery

*The Company's investment property consists of commercial properties of Rmall mulund, Runwal odeon mall and
Rmall Thane.

Leasing arrangements

The Company has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of
the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The
rental income in respect of cancellable leases is disclosed as 'License fees and rental income' in note 34 . With respect
to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Particulars e ]

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Within one year 1,527.15 1,338.07
t/(;’g;fhon one year but not later than 5 1.334.02 1,941 46

Contingent rent recognised as income - Rs. 299.09 Lakhs (31st March, 2022: Rs. 150.48 Lakhs)

The Company has no restfriction on the redlisability of its investment property ‘and no contractual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

The valuation of property have been determined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of
Companies (Registeered Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale
comparision technique. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering value of
comparable property having same utility & attraction. Under this method average rate for estimated leasable area
has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for various factors as size, discount,
rates, local attributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. All
resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2.

Fair valuation of commercial properties for land and building together is based on Sales comparison method which is
Rs.66,249 Lakhs (31st March, 2022 Rs.66,997.04 lakhs) as per valuation report for the period ended 31st March, 2023
respectively.

On adoption of IND AS, inventory given on lease rental is classified under head investment properties as per para 57 of
Ind AS 40.

The carrying amount of investment properties charged as securities against borrowings amounts to Rs. 43,449.83 lakhs
{(P.Y. Rs. 41,180.88 lakhs)
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7

Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software Total

Gross block

As at 01st April, 2021 28.89 28.89
Additions 2.93 2.93
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2022 31.82 31.82
Additions 0.53 0.53
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2023 32.35 32.35
Accumulated amortisation

As at 01st April, 2021 19.04 19.04
Amortisation charge for the year 8.34 8.34
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2022 27.38 27.38
Amortisation charge for the year 3.55 3.55
Disposals - -
As at 31st March, 2023 30.93 30.93
Net block

As at 31st March, 2023 1.42 1.42

As at 31st March, 2022 4.44 4.44
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8
Intangible asset under development

Particulars Software Total

Cost
As at 01st April, 2021 - &
Additions = -
Capitalised during the year - -
As at 31st March, 2022 -
Additions 212.26 212.26

Capitalised during the year - -
As at 31st March,2023 212.24 212.26

a) Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

infanglble assets under Amount in Intangible assets under developme’\r:\i f:)er t¢.;|‘:’:t:‘er:l;:|d of
development Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years oveors Total
Projects in progress 212.26 - - - 212.26
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 212.26 - - - 212.26
b) Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

Intanglble assets under Amount In Intangible assets under development for a perlod’:f o

development Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years ovears Total
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - = = - s

Intangible assets under development mainly comprises of expenditure towards software.
Refer Note 48 for disclosure of Capital Commitments for acquisition of Intangible Assets under development.
The Infangible assets under development are related to projecis which are in Progress. No projects are suspended.

No projects have exceeded their original timelines or original budget.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

ole § 31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

Goodwill
Goodwill on Consolidation 0.22 0.22

0.22 0.22

As at As at
Note 10 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Equity accounted investees
Investments measured at equity method

1. In equity shares of associate companies:
Unquoted, fully paid up

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

(C.Y. 8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each; P.Y. 8,00,400 shares of Rs. 100 each) 5.239.37 3,204.66
2. In shares of joInt venture companles

Unquoted, fully pald up

R Retail Ventures Private Limited **

(C.Y. 20,31,10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 10,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
CCPS series 2 0.01% preference shares

(C.Y. Nil shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 20,31,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each}

5,210.92 17.041.08

R mail Developers Private Limited

Class A

(C.Y. 19,90,000 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 19,920,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
Class B

(C.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 each)

15,924.28 10,557.64

26,374.57 30,803.38

**As on 31st March, 2023 investment of R Retail Ventures Private Limited CCPL Series 2 - 0.01% preference shares of Rs.
20,310 Lakhs equivalent to 20,31,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each converted info equity shares of Rs. 20,310 Lakhs equivalent
20,31,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each approved through Board Resolution.

Note 11 As at As at
31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022

Other non current investments
Investments measured at falr value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

In unquoted equlty shares, fully pald up
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 017 017
(C.Y. 100 shares of Rs. 10 each; P.Y. 100 shares of Rs. 10 each) ' '

In mutual fund

Aditya birla sun life saving fund - growth - direct plan 348.32 62.89
( C.Y - 74,858.207 units, P.Y. - 48,086.93 units)

348.49 63.06

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 348.32 62.89

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 0.17 0.17
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at

Note 12 31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Other non-current flnancial assets
(Unsecured consldered good unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties

Security deposits# 1,377.89 240.16
Lease Equalization Reserve 82.41 134.32
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity* 161.88 978.94

1,622.18 1,353.42

# Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits.

* Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 80 lakhs {PY Nil)

As at

Note 13 31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Other Non-Current Assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To related parties

Security deposit # 20.43 18.32

To parties other than related partles

Other non current asset 191 1.93
22.34 20.25

# Securities deposits will be adjusted against the land for which the amount is given.

As at
31st March, 2023

Note 14

As at
31st March, 2022

Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw material 527.10 335.73

Construction work In progress 2,03,473.60 1,36,521.61

Finished goods 23,946.21 33,204.55

Entitlement of fransferable development rights - 718.38

Stock in trade 501.00 -
2,28,447.91 1,70,780.27

The carrying amount of inventories charged as securities against borrowings 67,913.34 73,319.89
As at As at

Note 15
31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Current Investments

Investments measured at cost
Investment in debentures of Joint venture - unquoted, fully paid up

R Mall Developers Private Limited* - 1,000.00

(1,000 Non-convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000)

Investment In debenture instruments (at amortised cost)

OCD Series 3 #

Horizon Projects Pvt Ltd (7,000 debentures of Rs 1,00,000 each) 7,000.00 7,000.00
7,000.00 8,000.00

* Debentures of Rs 500 lakhs redeemed in July, 2022 and balance redeemed in August, 2022.

# Each OCD series 3 shall have a face value of Rs. 100,000. The Tenor of the OCD Series 3 shall be until March 31, 2024, or
such extended term as may be determined by the board with the prior written consent of OCD Series 3 holders
redeemable at a premium, which is to be decided at the time of redemption.

At the expiry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OCD Series 3 may be converted to Class C Shares. The OCD Series
3 shall be unsecured. The OCD Series 3 shall not carry any voting rights.

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 7,000.00 8,000.00
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

Note 17 31st March, 2023 _ 31st March, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

In current accounts * 7.661.77 2,674.02
In deposit accounts with originat maturity of less than 3 months 2,759.50 11,143.17
Cheque-in-hand B 1,400.00
Cash on hand 57.19 57.90

10,478.46 15,275.09

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

*Includes amount held in escrow account for a project under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 ("RERA"). The
money can be utilised for payments of the specified projects.

As at As at

hoie 18 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Bank balances other than above

In déposit accounts (with original maturity more than three months but less than twelve

months) # 2,597.04 1,371.94

2,597.04 1,371.94

# Bank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amounting to Rs.164.43 lakhs
[PY Rs. 9.30 lakhs)

N As at As at
gy 31st March, 2023 _ 31st March, 2022
Loans

(Unsecured consldered good unless otherwlse stated)

To related parties

Inter Corporate Deposits * - 45.00

To Partles other than related parties

Security deposit 1,289.54 811.30

Inter corporate deposit** 7,310.60 7,142.23

Loans and advances to employees A 7.98 31.87
8,608.12 8,030.40

* Inter corporate deposits given to related parties are repayable on demand. (refer note no 47)

** Inter corporate deposits given to parties other than related parties have rate of interest of 12% p.a. which Rs.150 Lakhs repayable
on or before 01-08-2023 & further Rs.150 Lakhs on or before 01-12-2023 and parties have rate of interest of 9% p.a which repayable
within 3 years from date of agreement.

in DWMPL inter corporate deposits given fo parties other than related parties have rate of interest of 8.5% p.a. and are repayable on
demand.

A Loans and advances to employees are adjusted against future salaries and reimbursement of expenditures.

As af As at
Type of Borrower 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Sonsh % of Total eount % of Total

outstanding ° outstanding °
Promoters - 0.00% - 0.00%
Directors - 0.00% - 0.00%
KMP's - 0.00% - 0.00%
Related Parties - 0.00% 45.00 0.56%
Total - 0.00% 45.00




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As ot

Nelek20 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Other Current Financial Assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To Related Parties

Balance receivable as retired partner - 661.45
Receivable towards cancellation of flats - -
Receivable towards cancellation of lease 6.00 6.00
Security deposit* - 5,923.93
To Parties other than related parties
Security deposit* 306.88 231.09
Recoverable from society - 144.04
Other receivables 36.50 17.42
Other advances# 219.43 189.52
Interest accrued but not due 771.67 315.74
Lease Equadlization Reserve 4496 65.77
1,385.44 7,554.96

* Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand
# Other advances are repayable on demand.

Note 21 As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Other Current Assets

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances other than capital advances
To Related Partles

Security deposit** - 4,374.00
To Parties other than related parties
Advance to suppliers and contractor 3,575.21 2,863.06
Advance against flats 1,080.99 506.51
Balances with statutory authorities 997.85 783.97
Prepaid expenses 130.16 94.81
Advance for land/others/TDR# 8,960.28 14,749.20
Deferred brokerage 6,306.34 3,346.38
21,050.83 26,717.93

# Advances against land/others are fowards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be settled against
future purchase of such assets.

** Security deposits given to related parties are non interest bearing.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

Note 23
Other equity

Capital Reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Capltal redemption reserve

Balance as at 01st Aprll, 2021

Movement during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Creation on redemption of prefernce shares
Amount utilised for issuance of Bonus Shares
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Capital reserve on consolidation

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Securities premlum

Balance as at 01st Aprll, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

General reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2021
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Movement during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Retalned earnings

Balance as at 01st April, 2021

Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {net of tax)
Fair value gain on instrument subsequently measured at fair value through other
Acquisition of subsidiary

Effects of transaction between equity participants
Reversal of excess value of treasury shares (refer note 22)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Creation of CRR on redemption of Preference Shares
Reversal of excess value of treasury shares (refer note 22)
Transfer/utilisation of reserves (CRR)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

(33,695.59)

(33,695.59)

(33,695.59)

1.803.22
1,803.22

2,32
53,819.31

53,821.63

53,821,683

24,201.78
(3.14)

24,198.64

(362.00)

__ 23836.64_

225.00

225.00
(225.00)

91,355.74
(12,517.80)
15.35

(6,495.43)
427.12

(1,408.76)

71,376.22

1,792.80
16.68
(1,578.22)
36.46

71,643.94




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non confrolling interest

Balance as at 01st April, 2021 16,132.01
Movement during the year 7.891.22
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 24,023.23
Movement during the year 2,441.91
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 26,465.14
Total equity

At 01 April 2021 98,221.26
At 31st March 2022 1,39,949.13
At 31st March 2023 1,42,071.75

Nature and purpose of reserves

1) Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises of Rs.35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Really Private
Limited ("RRPL"), Runwal Projects Private Limited ("RPPL") and Runwal Township Private Limited ('RTPL")have merged
into Runwal Developers Private Limited resulting into a negative capital reserve of Rs. 10,175 lakhs, negative capital
reserve of 28,640 lakhs and a positive capital reserve of Rs. 3,097 lakhs.

2) Capital reserve on consolidation
Capital reserve arising on account of consolidation of subsidiaries.

3) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earmings for appropriation purposes. As
the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

4) Retalned earnings
Retained earnings are the profit that the Company (including all merged entities) has eamed till date, less any
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

5) Securities premium

On account of merger of RRPL and RPPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securities
premium of the respective companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's
reserves.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 24

Non-cumrent financlal liabllifles- borrowings (at amortised cost)
Secured:
Term loans

From banks
From others
Vehicle loan from bank

Less: Amount disclosed under cumrent borowings as current maturifies of long-term
bomrowings (refer note 28)

Less: Unamortised borrowing cost

Unsecured:
7% Redeemable preference shares*

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March. 2022
13,097.45 10,138.68
53,060.74 46,198.99
29.72 46.64
(615.07) (4,459.09)
{630.47) {472.00)
64.90
64,942.37 51,518.12

* The Company has issued 6,49,000 7% Redeemable Non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 30th November, 2019 in consideration of amalgamation of RTPL,
RPPL and RRPL with RDPL on 30th November, 2019. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of transferee company anytime after five (5) years but before 20 years
from the date of allotment. On 26th September, 2022 with the approval of shareholders of the Company, these preference shares have been redeemed.

A. Secured loans from banks:

$r. No. |Loan taken from Outstanding amount|Rate of Interest Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
1 Bank of Baroda - loan A/c no.|C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Term loan under future rent receivable scheme of|Monthly EMI of Rs.47,65,000 fill
04160600020448 {P.Y. - 992.55) Bank of Baroda , Secursd by Agreement of{January 2024, last EMI on 29th
assignment of rent receivables and equitable|February, 2024 of Rs.25,37,662
mortgage of some commercial shops situated in R-
Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East, admeasuring a
leasable area of 53,505 sq.ft.
2 |Bank of Baroda - loan A/c no.|C.Y. - Nil B.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Menlhly EMI of Rs.54,76,200 fill
04160600020469 {P.Y.-1,166.14) January 2024, last EMI an 29ih
February, 2024 of Rs.59,60,248
3 |Bank of Baroda car loan CY.-3.08 7.60% Car- maruti suzuki new wagon R LXI (O} CNG 36 Months EMI
account 03810600002072 (P.Y. - 5.04}
4  |Bank of Baroda loan A/c no, |C.Y. - Nil 8.65% Term loan under fulure rent receivable scheme of|Monthly EMI of Rs.12,91,600 fill
04160600020606 (P.Y.-1,442.68) Bank of Boroda, Secured by Agreemen! of{June 2022,
assignment of rent receivables and equitable{'July 2022 to December 2023-
morlgage of some commercial shops situated al RiRs. 18,11,000/-
Odeon Mall, Ghalkopar Easl, admeasuring alJanuary 2024 fo May 2026- Rs,
leasable area of 53,505 sq. fl. 44,68,375/-
last EMI on 30th June. 2026 of
Rs.1,10,75.0463/-
5 |Bank of Baroda loan A/c no. |C.Y.- Nil 8.65% Secured by lease rentals of Rmall mulund. Monthly EMI of Rs.35,47,812 fill
04160600020607 [P.Y.-3.796.37) December 2021,
January 2022 to June 2023- Rs.
44,99,770/-
July 2023 to November 2025-
Rs. 1,19,31,240/-
last EMI on 31st December,2025
of Rs.3,91,90,025.03/-
6 |ICICIBank Ltd car loan - C.Y.-43.55 7.50% Car - Mercedes-benz 60 Months EMI start from
LAMUMO00042576930 (P.Y.-57.31) January, 2021 fill December,
2025
7 |Union Bank of India loan a/c |C.Y.-1,731.43 13.75% 1. 'Land & building Repayable In 109 monthly
319304390000013 (P.Y.-2,123.55) 2. Hypothecation of plant and machinery and|instalments of Rs. 30,47,500/-
other asset created out of bank finance each commencing from 28th
February 2018,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ICIC! Bank Ltd loan
RTL I

1. 603090002692
2. 603090002709
RTLI

1. 603090002710
2. 603090002711
3. 603090002712
4. 603098009633
RTL 1

1. 603090011898
2. 603090015401
3. 603090009427
4. 603090009848
5. 603090009944
6. 603090010283
7. 603090010382
8. 603090010444
9. 603090016739
10. 603098009741

C.Y. - Nil
(P.Y.-3,152.54)

1.11.25%

2.11.25% (June 15 to 26) &
10.85% (June 27 to 14 July)
3. 15 July onwards 10.85%

1. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Property [Nirvana Project} 257,453 sq. ft.
excluding saleable area of approximately 107,242
sq. ft. t be surendered to the Property Owner.

2. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on development rights of All the piece & parcel of
land located at Survey No. 3/2468, Cadastral
Survey No. 662 of Parel - Sewr Division, situated at
G.D. Ambedkar Road ‘{formerly known as Parel
Tank Road) within the Registration District of
Mumbai City and Mumbai Suburban admeasuring
approximately 8,627.99 square meters {'sq. mtrs."),
including all the structures thereon both present &
future but excluding rehab building A having area
of approximately 132,698 square feet ('sq. ft.").

3. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Scheduled Receivables and all insurance
proceeds, both present and future.

4. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on security of all rights, title, interest, claims,
benefits, demands wunder all the documents
pertaining to the Project Documents both present
and future.

5. 'Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
on the Escrow Account and the DSR Account
along with all monies credited/deposited therein
{in whatever form the same may be), and all
investments in respect thereof (in whatever form
the same may be).

1. Repayment of RTL | & 1l in 10
monthly installments
commencing from 15th
November, 2021.

2. Repayment of RTL Il in 24
monthly instalments
commencing from 15th
December, 2021.

Indian Bank-RDPL{Malls) Loan
a/c no.7298602335

C.Y.-6,365.60
{P.Y. - Nil)

8.20%

1. Excluslve Charge on Assignment of Rent
Receivables out of the below mentioned
Properties.

2. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on
the escrow account and all the recelvables and all
curent assels, present and future below
mentioned properties.

3. Exclusive charge over Debt Service Reserve
Account maintained with Bank, equivalent to 1
Month.

4. Registered Mortgage of Shop no.G-7, G-16A, G-
16B, G-16, F-6, 1-2, T-18, T 19, G-13, 529 & 30, G-10A,
G-11, F-1, F-5, T-12, T5 & 6, 81, S2 §3,526,527,528, S16,
$17,518 and terrace, T2A, T-1, -7, T-15 & 16, $-14, §
41 of R Mall, BS Marg, Mulund West.

5. Registered Mortgage of commercial shops
situated at Floor no.3 to 4, Shop nos. G-1, G-3, G-
14, Common Areq, F-4, F-5, F-9, F-10, F15, S2, S5, K6,
K7, $10, S11, §12 of R Odeon Mall, Ghatkopar East.

As per sanction letter
repayment in 180 installments
as follows:

1.7 Installments of 7 Lakh

2. 8 installments of 8 Lakh

3. 12 Installments of 12 Lakh
4. 12 Installments of 20 Lakh
5. 19 Installments of 25 Lakh
6. 9 Instaliments of 30 Lakh

7. 18 Installments of 35 Lakh
8. 6 Installments of 40 Lakh
9.9 Installments of 48 Lakh
10. 11 Installments of 51 Lakh
11. é Installments of 56 Lakh
12. 8 Installments of 62 Lakh
13. 10 Instaliments of 70 Lakh
14.13 Installments of 75 Lakh
15. 9 Installiments of 85 Lakh
16. 12 Installments of 90 Lakh
17. 10 Installiments of 95 Lakh
18. 1 Installments of 93 Lakh

Bank of Baroda

CY - Nil
{PY 959.14)

8.65%

1. Mortgage of land and building constructed
thereon with valuation not less than 2 times of the
loan (EM of all those pieces or parcels of land in
Revenue Village of Mouje Chitaisar. Manpada ,Pot
Tukdl and Taluka Petha Thane, Tukdi ,md District
Thane (W) admeasuring 24282.68 sq mt .and
bearing survey no 23 Hissa No 1, survey m. 23 Hissa
m 2 (part) and survey no 24 Hissa no.2 (part)
alongwlth the Mall structures standing thereon
called R-Mall and having licensable area of
approx. 3,15,672 sqft valued at Rs.205.55 crore.

2. The firm has to submit an imevocable
undertaking stating that, the assignment of rent
receivables will be in place iill the currency of the
term loan granted by the bank and the firm will
reassign the rent receivables in respect of lease
agreements which are required renewed /
extended on expiry of option period. Irevocable
letter of authority from the firm authorizing the
lessee to pay the rent/lease rent amount to our
bank, duly acknowledged by the lessee.

3. Assignment of rent receivables to be routed in to
ESCROW accuunt with our bank. Exclusive charge
on the ESCROW account.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{All amounls in Rs. La

khs, unless otherwise stated)

M

ICICI Bank

CY - 4,893.10
{PY Nil)

7.90%

All the piece & parcel of land admeasuring
approximately 22,510 sq. mirs. {excluding therefrom
(a) an area admeasuring 6410 square meters for
road set back (b) an area admeasuring 790.25
square meters for Amenity space as per and an
area admeasuring 295 square meters - area not in
possession as per TILR 28/2003, as approved plan
dated 18.10.2019 bearing reference no. V.P. No.
505/0164/18(2004/4%}/TMC/TDD/3207/19 issued by
Thane Municipal Corporation) bearing Gut number
16 (Survey Number 23 Hissa No. 1}, Gut number 17
{1} (Survey number 23 hissa no. 2{parn} and Gut
no. 19 (pt) {Survey No. 24, hissa no. 2{pt) located at
revenue village of Mouje Chitalsar, Manpada, Pot
Tukdi and Taluka Petha Thane, Tukdi, and District
Thane within Thane Mahanagarpallika, Thane
Ghodhbunder Road including all the structures
thereon as defined in Project.

138 monthly installments
commencing from é months
from the Date of First Drawal.

Total

B. Secured loans from others:

C.Y. - 12,946.36
(P.Y. - 13.695.32)

10705475

e
he

12.80% from 02-10-22 to 31-
03-2023

in the project "Runwal Timeless" being developed
on land parcel located at CS. Nos. 4 (part), §
(part}, 6 {part}, and 7 {part} of Salt Pan Division,
Sion-situated at Pratiksha Nagar, Shastri Nagar, "C"
Division in F/North Ward, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
including all future constructions, FSI, TDR, and
benefits theraon to the extent of RDPL's share.
2. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' interesi
outstanding amount of the facility.

Il. Additional Security:

1. Extension of first charge by way of registered
mortgage on the unsold proportion of land and
building of the projects "R Anthurium" and 'R
Square" located at LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai,
along with any present and future construction.
Receivables

on

Sr. no |Loan taken from Ovtstanding amount|Rate of Interest Secured agalnst/ guarantee glven Terms of repayment
1 |Aditya Birla Finance Limited - [C.Y. - 7,505.94 10.50% upto 25-05-2022,|1.Unsold inventory of ‘The Residence" & "The|Repayable in 24 monthly
12008400258 a/c & (P.Y.-11,295.89) 10.80% from 26-05-2023 to 17|Reserve" Projects. installments commencing from
ABFLMUMCF0000136782 06-2023, 11.30% from 18-06-|2. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal far|0ist October, 2023,
2023 to 14-01-2023, 11.65% -|the proposed facilities.
15-01-2023 onwards
2 |Aditya Birla Finance Limited - |C.Y. - 6,215.47 11.15% from 15-01-2023 1. 28 unsold units admeasuring 50,026 sq. ft. of(Repayable in 60 monthly
ABFMU2TER00001002240 {P.Y. - Nil) onwards carpet area in the project known as Runwal(instalments commencing from
Elegante 15th August, 2022
2. Hypothecation & Escrow of scheduled
receivables of 28 unsold units of Runwal Elegante
3. DSRA equivalent to 1 month's interest,
4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for
the proposed facilities.
3 |Tata Capital Housing Finance |C.Y. - Nil 1% from 14-02-2022 to 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage| 60 Months including
Limited 10533130 & 10681237 |(P.Y.-53.21) 30-06-2022, on fhe wunsold wunils in Properly 1 90,786 sgft|moratorium perod of 30
11.80% from 01-07-2022 to 01-{[Securily 1') localed al Survey Mo./CTS No. BB4A months from the date of first
10-2022, 12.80% from 2. Exclusive charge by way of registerad morlgage|disbursement
02-10-2022 onwards on the unsold unils in Properly 2A 56,545 sqft
|'Securly 2') localed al Survey No./CTS No. BB4A
3. Bxclusive charge by way of registered morigage
on the unsold wnifs in Properly 2B 1,34,794 sqft
[Securily 3) localed al Survey No. / CTS No. - B84A
4, Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal to
the lune of Rs 75 crores under the proposed
facililies
5. DSRA equivalent to 3 months' inlerest on
outstanding amount to be maintained in the form
of FD with llen marked to TCHFL during the
currency of loan
6. Securty Inferest on urisold Units along with
residual interes! on sold unils In the Property 1, 2A &
2B
4 Tata Capital Housing Finance |C.Y. - 6068.21 11.80% from 01-07-2022 to 01{I. 1. Exclusive charge by way of registered|72 Months including
Limited - 10704493 & (P.Y.-7.813.99) 10-2022 mortgage on the RDPL's share of right/title/interest|moratorium  period of 42

months from the date of firsl
disburserneant

7t ered No

= 4
— w
w) ‘%
» -~

<
IS




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolldated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Primary Receivables:

1. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on all
receivables, to the extent of developer's share,
including sold, unsold, insurance receipts as well as
development and other charges from units and
any cash flow from the project "Runwal Timeless"
located at CS. Nos. 4 {part), 5 {part}, 6 (part}, and 7
(part) of Salt Pan Division, Sion-situated at Pratiksha
Nagar, Shastri Nagar, "C" Division in F/North Ward,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, including ail  future
constructions, FS!, TDR, and benefits thereon to the
extent of RDPL's share.

IV.Additional Receivables:

1. Extension of fist charge by way of
hypothecation on all lhe receivables including
sold, unsold, insurance receipts as well as
development and other charges from units and
any cash flow from the project "R Anthurium"” and
"R Square” located at LBS Marg, Mulund, Mumbai.
V. Personal Guarantee : 55cr sandeep Runwal

Aditya Birla Finance Lid

CX. 12,23895
(P.Y. 12886.71)

7.35%

Exclusive charge by way of first pari passu charge
on land at Village Dhokali {Balkumy} in Thane, along
with Residential Building known as Runwal Eirene
and TDR/FSI thereon.

Exclusive charge by way of escrow of receivables
from sold and hypothecation of unsold units in the
project ‘Runwal Eirene’, Tower éA to D and Tower 7
to 13.

Tenor of total 60 months
{wherein scheduled repayment
will start from the end of the
36th month from date of first
disbursement)

Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

C.Y. 3793.50
(P.Y. Nil)

8.70%

1. Exclusive first charge by way of registered
mortgage on land admeasuring 3,363 sqm located
village Dhokali (Balkumy} in Thane district alongwith
residential building known as ‘Tower 14- Zenith,
developed thereon alongwith present and future
construction of TDR / FSI thereon. 2. Incremental
collection till Rs.100 crores - 25% of incremental
collections to be fransferred to lender collection
a/c & remaining amount will be transferred to the
current account of the borower. Incremental
collection from Rs.100 crores fill closure of the
Facility - 85% of incremental collections to be
transferred to lender collection a/c & remaining
amount will be transferred to the cument account
of the borrower.

Tenor of total 40 months
{wherein scheduied repayment
will start from the end of the
36th month from date of first
disbursement)

HDFC Lid

CY-9,160.73
(PY-10,289.31)

11.00%

1. Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage
on the project land of 'Runwal Sanctuary' being
developed on land admeasuring 24,406.20 sq mir
of area and situated at CS No. 544 and 544/1 of
Vilage Nahur, Taluka Kurla, together with
construction thereon both present and future.

'2. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortigage
on security of all scheduled receivables under the
documents entered into with the customers of the
funded projects by the Borower and all insurance
proceeds, both present and future scheduled
receivables, receivables/cash  flows/revenues
including booking amounts arising out of or in
connection with pr relating to the project.

3. Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage
oh escrow accounts.

4, Excluslve charge by way of registered mortgage
on TDR both present and future formerly part of
the three projects.

JM Financial Credit Solutions
Limited

CY - 7.446.60
{PY - NIl)

TL1-125%

T-3-11.1%

1. First and Exclusive charge by way of registered
mortgage of ProJect "Runwal Enchanted’ aiong
with all structures developed / to be developed
thereon and all receivables generated from the
sold/unsold units developed/to be developed
thereon ("Project Runwal Enchanted").

2. Escrow of receivables generated from the
sold/unsold units developed/to be developed in
Project "Runwal Enchanted".

3. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal.

The repayment shall be made
in 24 equal monthly instalments
starting from the end of 49th
month from date of first
drawdown under Term Loan 1
and ending on the 72th month
from the date of first drawdown
under Term Loan 1.

There shall be a principal
moratorium of 48 months for|
Term Loan 1, Tm Loan 2 and
Term Loan 3 from the date of
first drawdown under Term
Lean 1.

Total

C.Y. - 52,429.40
(P.Y, - 42,232.69)

I,
'This changes in liabilities schedule includes movements for curen q "

on - curent portion of term loans.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 25

Lease Liabilities - Non Current

Lease Liabilities {Refer note 56)

Note 26

Non Current Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses

Note 27
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabllities)

Deferred tax (liabllitles)

Property, plant & equipment

Right of use asset

Investment property

Investment

FVTPL financial assets

FVOCI financial assets

Lease equalisation reserve assets
Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination
Capital gain on unsoid inventory (land)
Finished Goods

Advance from customer

Loan Processing Fees - Mall
Discounting on security deposits
Construction Work In Progress

Deferred tax assets

Intangible asset

Investment property

Carry forward losses of house property income
Carry forward losses of capital transaction
Provisions for doubtful debts

Provisions for retirement benefits

Disallowance under section 438

Discounting on security deposits

Expenses incurred on business combination

Fair valuation of merged entity (Runwal Township Private Limited)

Advertisement Expenditure
Advance from customer

Deferred tax llabllities (net)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

3.48

3.48

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

109.15 100.54
68.10 70.63
177.25 171.17

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

(1,449.53) (1.504.97)
(26.70) (27.08)
(13,021.43) (13,323.49)
(163.62) (175.62)
(1.09) (0.19)
(58.42) (75.30)
(110.20) (110.20)
(311.26) (397.28)
- (551.14)
(31.59) -
(28.74) -
(1,589.54) (2,736.72)
(16,792.12) (18,901.99)
0.88 -
157.16 -
35.23 35.23
129.02 -
41.06 36.08
29.93 33.40
27.58 28.11
1.72 2.58
506.00 -
4414 155.28
972.72 290.68
(15,819.40) (18,611.31)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of tax expenses : Asial aspe
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
I/(\)rsr;ount of current tax recognised in the standalone statement of profit and (2.901.27) (3,690.64)
Deferred tax (charge) / credit
Property, plant & equipment 55.43 20.18
Right of use asset 0.38 (27.08)
FVTPL financial assets (0.90) (0.19)
FVOCI financial assets - 829.01
Lease equalisation reserve assets 16.88 (84.38)
Intangible asset 0.88 -
Investment in shares 12.00 (175.62)
Investment property 459,22 (13,323.49)
Revaluation of inventory on account of business combination - 104.44
Carry forward losses house property income - 13.09
Carry forward losses capital transaction - (1,379.64)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 129.02 -
Provisions for retirement benefits 4.98 (4.22)
Disallowance under section 43B (3.47) 13.00
Discounting on security deposits (29.28) 28.11
Expenses incurred on business combination (0.86) (0.86)
Finished goods 86.03 3,601.90
Construction Work In Progress 1,147.18 (2,736.72)
Advance from customer 440.00 {5,154.14)
Advertisement Expenditure 506.00 -
Loan Processing Fees (31.59) -
Capital gain on unsold inventory (land) - 0.45
Total of B 2,791.90 (18,276.14)
Totalof A + B (109.37) {21,966.80)
Reconclliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 8,821.72 17,091.92
Tax * 2,083.53 4,312.70
Tax effect of ;
Non-deductible expenses 15.29 180.01
Tax on exempted income 94.60 188.13
CSR expenses 78.80 79.14
Disallowance of mall management exp 21.26 28.06
Tax on deemed rent 42,39 18.10
Tax on actual rent 191.89 128.87
Deferred tax not considered in previous year (195.49) -
(Expenses) / income offered in tax books (net) (2,441.64) 17,031.79
Tax expenses recognised (109.37) 21,966.80
*Tax rate : for corporate @ 25.168% (P.Y. 25.168%) and for partnership firm @ 34.32% (P.Y. 34.32%)
As at As at
Nefers 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Current Borrowings
Secured
Bank overdraft (refer table below) 4,164.67 4,003.14
Cumrent maturities of long-term borrowings (also refer note 24)
From banks 394.30 4,459.09
From others 88.80 -
Vehicle loan from bank 16.93 15.70
Unsecured
0.01% Redeemable preference shares# - 1,607.62
Book overdraft 1,069.66 288.66
From partles other than related partles
From financial institutions 2,500.00 -
From related partles
From Others 388.15 12,007.77
8,622.51 22,381.98




Runwal Developers Private Limlted
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Bank overdraft
Bank overdraft taken from |Outstanding Rate of [Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment
amount interest
HDFC Bank A/c - C.Y.3,998.93 7.00% |BSLI ULIP Policies of Mr. Sandeep Runwal & Mr.  |Renewal every year
50200058023408 (P.Y. 3,832.01) Subodh Runwal, FD of Rs.2.80 cr for 24months on
auto renewal till the tenure of the facility.
ICICI BANK LTD A/C C.Y. -(Nil) 11.25% |1. Exclusive charge by way of registered The Borrower shall
074005002999 * {P.Y. Nil) mortgage on the Property |. be entitled to repay
2. Exclusive charge by way of registered the OD facility at
mortgage on development rights of the any time from the
Property. date of
3. Exclusive charge by way of registered disbursement of
mortgage on the Scheduled Receivables and  [such OD facility, il
ICICI Bank Ltd A/C C.Y. -(Nil) 11.25% |allinsurance proceeds, both present and future. [the last OD
074005001213 * {P.Y. 4.20) 4. Exclusive charge by way of registered reduction 15th
mortgage on security of all rights, title, interest, [November, 2023.
claims, benefits, demands under all the
documents pertaining to the Project Documents
both present and future.
5.Exclusive charge by way of registered
ICICI Bank Ltd A/C C.Y.-(165.74)  |11.25% |mortgage on the Escrow Account and the DSR
623905028781 (P.Y. 166.92) Account along with all monies
credited/deposited therein (in whatever form
the same may be), and all investments in
respect thereof (in whatever form the same
may be).
Total C.Y. -4,144.67
(P.Y. - 4,003.13)

* As on 31st March, 2023 there were Debit closing balance hence group under Cash & Cash Equivalent.

# The Company has issued 1,73,83,200 0.01% Redeemable non - cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each on 4th
November 2020 in consideration of amalgamation of Runwal Builders Private Limited ('RBPL}), Runwal Properties Private
Limited (‘RPPL’} , Veear Property Developers (Bombay) Private Limited ('VPDBPL} and Odeon Exhibitors Private Limited
('OEPL) with RDPL on 4th November 2020. The RPS shall be redeemable at par at the option of Transferee Company anytime
after five (5) years but before 20 years from the date of allotment.

After the preference shares were issued on 4th November, 2020, in the month of March 2021 the Company initiated the
discussion with the preference shareholders to redeem these preference shares on immediate basis. Hence.these
preference shares were shown as a part of Current Liability in previous year at fair value and during the current year, the
Company has redeemed the preference shares on 2éth september, 2022. Upon extinguishment of preference shares,
uncleared balance of Rs.119.20 lakhs are fransferred to Other payable.

Note 29

As at As at
tease Licbliiese(Coment 31st March, 2023 315t March, 2022
Lease Liabilities (Refer note 56) 1.23 -

1.23 -
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Note 30
Trade payables

To Parties other than related parties

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Retention Money

i} Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

i) Dues of creditors other than micro ente
enterprises

For transactions with related parties, Refel

rprises and small

r to note 47

As at

As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

1.201.91

2.683.90

157.70
2,299.38

379.98

6,822.17

113.67
2,228.77

13,342.89

9.544.59

For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, Refer to note 54

Agelng of trade payables :

A) Ageing of frade payables as on 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Particular

Unbilled

Less than 1 year

1-2year

2 -3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

21632
1,634.10

921.46
7.351.75

39.24
131.24

22.49
160.40

2.40
406.41

1,201.91
9.683.90

Total

1.850.42

8,273.21

170.48

182.89

408.81

10,885.81

B) Agelng of rade payables as on 31st M

arch, 2022

Particular

Outstanding for following perlods from the due date

Unbllled

Less than 1 year

1-2year

2 -3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Others

Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and smalt enterprises
Others

53.37
1,799.02

264.51
4,084.05

43.76
257.55

8.59
165.11

975
516.44

379.98
6.822.17

Total

1852.39

4,348.56

301.31

173.70

526.19

720215

Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In various instances, retention
money is payable when the milestone of the entire set of services is completed and that too with a covenant that it will be paid after a period which
ranges between 3 to § years, if no deficiency is found during this specified period towards the services which were rendered by them. Hence,
practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.
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Note 31

Other current financial liabilities
To related parties
Inter corporate deposits

To other than related parties
Salary and bonus payable
Security deposits
Deferred income
Expenses payable
Other Payable
Payable toward society (net)
Interest accrued but not due
Amount payable towards cancelled flats

Nofe 32
Other current liabilities

Security deposit

To other than related parties

Advance from customers *

Society Maintenance payable

Statutory dues payable

Deferred liability against purchase of development rights *
Other payable

(All amounts In Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

- 508.00
206.62 245,53
3,289.34 2,867.36
121.22 100.09
358.57 399.56
119.20 353.59
168.40 363.21
342.52 191.84
596.20 1,027.21
5,202.07 4,056.39
As at As af

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

* (Refer note 50 on Ind AS 115 - Revenue from coniracts with customers)

Note 33
Current Provisions
Provision for gratuity

Provision for contingent liability
Provision for compensated absences

Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses

- 1,890.00
1,13,107.48 71,604.17
273.78 477.28
738.53 1,084.37
8,444.98 9,543.66
441.46 4,816.68
1,23,006.23 89,416.16
As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

40.74 30.83

128.54 128.54

30.54 29.22

199.82 188.59




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of flats 23,881.90 67,910.00
Sale of solar power 553.90 342.56
Sale of wind power 62.23 71.62
Income from lease rental 2,473.01 1,346.05
Deferred revenue from joint development arangement 1,098.68 5,505.49
28,069.72 75175.72
Other operating revenue* 2.249.36 1,698.82
30,319.08 76,874.54

* Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed payment
from customers, cheque bounce charges, club usage charges etc.

Note 35 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Other Income
Business Support Service 360.00 360.00
Interest income
on fixed deposits 263.53 91.97
on income tax refund - 63.31
on debentures 26.96 54.47
onICD 563.10 377.70
on other deposits 211.89 126.66
Dividend Income - 0.02
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets 23.12 1.44
Share of profit from Firm - -
Miscellaneous income 472.18 43.82
Fair value gain on mutual fund investment* 15.72 1.64
Sundry Balances Written Back 3,877.15 3.872.41
Project management service 350.00 700.00
6,163.65 5,693.44

* Total net gain on fair value changes includes Rs, 1.03 lakhs (PY Rs. 0.01 lakhs) as net gain on sale of
investments.

Note 34 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Cost of construction and development expenses

Cost of construction and development expenses 68,435.13 69,091.34

68,435.13 69.091.34

(Refer note 58)

Note 37 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock 501.00 -

501.00 -




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38

Changes In Inventories of construction work-In-progress,

finished goods and stock in trade

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Opening Stock
Finished goods 33,922.93 92,620.91
Construction WIP 1,36,521.61 64,699.43
Transferable development rights - 809.20
Closing Stock
Finished goods (23,946.21) (33.922.93)
Construction WIP (2,03,473.60) (1,36.521.61)
Stock in trade {501.00) -
(57,476.27) (12,315.00)

Note 39

Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended

31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 4,315.07 3,382.62

Confribution to provident & other fund

(Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses) 96.48 59.38

Gratuity Expenses

{Refer note no. 46 employee benefit expenses) 33.34 61.37

Expenses related to compensated absences

{Refer Note 46 employee benefit expenses) 33.20 49.21

Staff welfare expense 112.98 66.47
4,591.07 3,619.05

Less: Transferred o construction work in progress (3,315.74) {2,456.90)
1,275.33 1,162.15

Note 40
FInance costs

Interest cost on financial liabilitly measured at amortised cost

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

On fixed period loan 6,674.26 3.377.06
On bank overdraft - 8.83
Dividend on redeemable Preference Shares 2.31 4.72
On inter corporate deposits - 117.27
Other interest cost 263.23 271.43
Finance charges 1,161.42 55.39
Total interest expense 8,101.22 3,834.70
Less: Transferred to construction work in progress (4,881.18) (1,490.15)
Total finance cost 3,220.04 2,344.55
For the year ended For the year ended

Note 41
Depreciation and amortization expense

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 459.34 8%90.51
Amortisation on right to use 7.31 597
Depreciation on investment property 953.96 74.54
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.55 8.34

1,424.14 979.36
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Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42 For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Other expenses
Electricity Charges 938.02 102.03
Repairs and maintenance

Building 52.22 30.95

Others 772.52 381.83
Insurance 60.14 59.95
Rates and taxes 749.96 190.11
Appeal fees / Consent fees 0.76 -
Legal and professional fees 388.13 134.19
Payment to auditor {refer note below) 47.62 85.67
Rent - 30.00
Advertising and sales promotion 5,093.95 1,254.74
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 313.08 312.00
Donation 5.95 2.45
Fees & forms 9.86 0.11
Property tax 6.03 11.62
Brokerage Commission 290.47 49712
Allowances for expected credit losses 261.71 479.43
Expenses incurred on completed project 59.41 -
Sundry balances w/off 93.44 195.02
Fixed assets w/off - 2.97
Other outsourcing expenses 11.33 18.27
Travelling expenses 31.13 -
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 0.36 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,095.53 425.20

10,281.62 4,213.66
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year atributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable for the year to equity shareholders (after
adjusting for dividend on the preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into
equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
SEANS. amicgiary 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

A Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic / diluted
earnings 4,233.78 (6,971.55)

B Outstanding number of equity shares

Ilztocrl number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 22,28,90,150 22.28,90.150

ii Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 22,28,90,150 22,28,90,150

Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as
iii outstanding at the end of the year (as per Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per 22,28,90,150 22,28,90,150
Share")
iv Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 1.90 (3.13)

Notes

* Earning per Equity Share been calculated /restated, as applicable, for all the year(s) presented after considering the new
number of equity shares post sub-division and issue of bonus shares, as explained in Note 22, in keeping with the provisions of
the applicable Ind AS.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 44
Summarised financial informatlon for associates and joint ventures

The table provides summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures. The information disclosed
reflects the amount presented in financial statements of the relevant associates and joint ventures and not the
Group share of those amounts, They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments need by the enfity when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustments made at time of acquisition and modification for differences in accounting policies.

(1) R Mall Developers Private Limited {"RMDPL")

The Group has a 49.75% (P.Y. 49.75%) interest in R Mall Developers Private Limited {"RMDPL"), a joint venture involved
in mall management of the R City Mall, Ghatkopar. The Group's interest in RMDPL Limited is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture,
based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in

consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet
As at As at

REHiculors 31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
A. Non-current assets 45,350.24 47,469.73
B. Cumrent assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 18,729.06 2,611.44

(i) Others 8,246.55 6,058.29
Total current assets 26,975.61 8,669.73
l. Total assets (A+B) 72,325.85 56,139.46
C. Non-current liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities 29,434.18 16,773.65

{iiy Non financial liabilities 194.05 214.51
Total non current liabllitles 29,628.23 16,988.16
D. Current liabilities

(i} Financial liabilities 9,188.81 17,141.43

(i) Non financial liabilities 1,500.25 788.53
Total current Habilities 10,689.06 17,929.96
Il. Total llabilities (C+D) 40,317.29 34,918.12
Net assets (I-I) 32,008.56 21,221.34
Group's Interest In net assets 15,924.28 10,557.64
Summarised statement of profit and loss of the RMDPL:
Particuiars As at ap

31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

Revenue from operations 25,098.21 13,452.78
Other income 275.62 623.40
Depreciatfion & amortization expenses 1,452.52 1,574.38
Finance cost 1,727.64 2,571.77
Employee benefit 1,009.40 860.16
Other expense 7.870.72 5,199.85
Proflt before tax 13,313.55 3,870.02
Tax expense 2,529.62 995.38
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 10,783.93 2,874.64
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): 3.29 3.36
Total comprehensive Income for the year (continuing operations) 10,787.22 2,878.00
Group's share of profit for the year 5,366.64 1,431.80
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(1) R Retall Ventures Private Limlted ("RRVPL") (consolidated)
The Group has a 50% (P.Y. 43.57%) interest in R Retail Ventures Private Limited ("RRVPL"}, a joint venture involved in
construction of Residential and Commercial properties. The Group's inferest in RRVPL is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture,
based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in
consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet of RRVPL

Particulars As gl Aval
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
A. Non-current assets 77,872.79 67,451.77
B. Current assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7.101.29 1,956.65
(i) Others 47,842.91 33,292.65
Total current assets 54,944.20 35,249.30
l. Total assets (A+B) 1,32,816.99 1,02,701.07
C. Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities 29,021.93 80,265.82
{iiy Non financial liabilities 25.05 24,44
Total non current liabilities 29,046.98 80,290.24
D. Current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities 5,474.39 6,882.79
(i) Non financial liabilities 55,972.11 23,030.20
Total current llabllitles 61,446.50 29,912.99
Il. Total liabillties (C+D) 90,493.48 1,10,203.25
Net assets (I-11) 42,323.51 (7.502.18)
Group's Interest In net assets * 18,440.35 (3,268.70)

* The Group's interest in net assets is calculated above considering 43.57%, as it was there during substaintial part of
the year. Refer Note 10.

Summarised statement of profit and loss of the RRVPL:

As at As at
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

Other income 88.44 47.10
Employee benefit 828.13 945.47
Depreciation 8 amortization expenses 87.41 83.62
Other expense 26,673.10 4,137.42
Finance cost 8.97 20.84
Loss before tax (27,509.17) (5,140.25)
Tax expense (348.42) (749.45)
Loss for the year (continuing operations) (27,160.75) (4,390.80)
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): 11.55 12.56
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) (27,149.20) (4,378.24)
Group's share of loss for the year (11,828.91) (1,907.60)

(ilf) Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ("WACL"

The Group has a 34.26% (P.Y. 34.26%) interest in Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ("WACL"), an associate involved
in Real Estate business. The Group's interest in WACL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements. Summarised financial information of the associate, based on its Ind AS financial statements,
and reconciliation with the camying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out
below:
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Summarised balance sheet of WACL as at 31st March 2023:

As at As at

31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
A. Non-current assets 23,106.76 885.88
B. Curmrent assets
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 2,018.37 393.87
(i) Others 72,526.25 97.648.50
Total current assets 74,544.62 98,042.37
|. Total assets (A+B) 97.651.38 98,928.25
C. Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities 7,200.00 26,887.19
{ii) Non financial liabilities 1,033.55 82.12
Total non current liabilities 8,233.55 26,969.31
D. Current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities 29,628.11 10,670.15
(i} Non financial liabilities 44,496.09 51,934.45
Total current liabilities 74,124.20 62.604.60
Il. Total liabllities (C+D) 82,357.75 89.573.91
Net assets (I-11) 15,293.63 9,354.34
Group's Interest In net assets 5,239.37 3,204.66
Summarised statement of profit and loss of the WACL:

As at As at

31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 39,734.93 31,806.36
Other income 351.93 209.93
Cost of Constructions 9,075.10 8,890.00
Changes in inventories of Finished goods 10,020.05 8,759.42
Depreciation & amortization expenses 65.80 81.34
Finance Cost 2,945.22 4,330.53
Employee benefit 1,.551.97 1,367.57
Other expenses 8,525.97 7,039.04
Proflt before tax 7,902.75 1,548.39
Tax expense 1,966.02 456.43
Proflt for the year (continuing operations) 5,936.73 1,091.96
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): 2.56 (5.73)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (continuing operations) 5,939.29 1,086.23
Group's share of profit for the year 2,034.80 372.14

(lv) SR Constructions

The Group has a 0.86% (P.Y. 0.86%) interest in SR Consructions a joint venture of an associate (WACL) involved in Real
Estate business. The Group's interest in SR constructions is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements-
management accounts, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet of SR Const ns st March 2023:

As at As at
31st March, 2023 _31st March, 2022

A. Non-cument assets
B. Current assefts

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9.84 8.75
{ii} Others 1,263.19 23,248.02
Total current assets 1,273.03 23,256.77
l. Total assets (A+B) 1,273.03 23,256.77
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
C. Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities -
(if) Non financial liabilities - -
Total non current liabllitles - -

D. Current liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities 5,700.62 6.00
(i) Non financial liabilities 0.84 0.15
Total current liabllities 5,701.48 6.15
Il. Total llabillties (C+D) 5,701.46 6.15
Net assets (I-I1) (4,428.43) 23,250.62
Group's interest in net assets (38.08) 199.96
Summarised profit and loss of SR Constructions as at 31st March 2023;

Other income 15.82 27.85
Employee benefit 15.55 23.84
Other expense 1.33 1.13
Profit before tax (1.06) 2.88
Tax expense - {0.87)
Profit for the year (continuing operations) (1.08) 2,01

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss): - -

Total comprehenslve Income for the year (continuing operations) (1.06) 2,01

Group’s share of profit for the year (0.01) 0.02
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(All amounis in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Reconciliation of carrying amount

I. Joint Venture
R Retall Ventures Pvi Lid (Consolidated) R Mall Developers Pvt Lid

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Net assets of joint venture 42,323.51 [7.502.18) 32,008.56 21,221.34
Proporation of ownership interest held by the group * 50.00% 43.57% 49.75% 49.75%
Groups interest in net asset 18,440.35 {3.268.70) 15,924.28 10,557.64
Additional investment during the year - 3.00 - -

Carrying amount of investment # 5,210.92 17.041.08 15,924,28 10,557.64

* The Group’'s interest in net assets is calculated above considering 43.57%, as it was there during substaintial part of the year. Refer Note 10.

li. Associates and joint venture of associates

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Lid SR Construction
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Net assets of associates 15,293.63 9.354.34 {4,428.43) 23,250.62
Proporation of ownership interest held by the group 34.26% 34.26% 0.86% 0.86%
Groups interest in net asset 5.239.37 3.204.66 (38.08) 199.96
Carrying amount of Investment # 5,239.37 3,204.66 - 199.96

# During the previous year Group interest in net asset of SR Constructions was negative, carying amount of Investment in amount is considered as
Nil.

Movement of investment using Equity method
1. Joint Venture

R Retail Ventures Pvt Lid R Mall Developers Pvi Lid

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening balance 17,041.08 19,553.23 10,557.64 9,121.59
Further investment during the year - 3.00 - -
Share of profits/(Loss) for the year {11.830.16) [2.515.15) 5.366.64 1,436.05
Closing balance 5,210.92 17,041.08 15,924.28 10,557.64
II. Associates and joint venture of associates

Wheelabralor Alloy Castings Ltd SR Constructlons

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Opening balance 3,204.66 2,832.62 228.85 228.85
Share of Profit / {loss) for the year 2,034.80 372.04 {0.01} 0.00
Closing balance 5,239.37 3,204.66 228.84 228.85
Other Information
Contingent llabilities for joint ventures and assoclates
Description Gt A

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Share of contingent liabilities and corporate guarantee incurred jointly with other investors of the joint venture and associate are as follows:

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Ltd - Contingent Liability 268.08 208.27
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Ltd - Corporate Guarantee 1,05,153 1,25,000
R Mall Developers Pvt Ltd - Contingent Liability 393.35 393.35

Total Amount 661.43 601.62
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(v) summarlised financial statement of subsidiaries

Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited Runwal Constructions
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Non -current assets 821.44 600.21 56,743.90 57,358.74
Current assets 93,340.52 84,107.16 80,078.67 57,934.53
Non - current liabilities 16,090.66 12,930.69 36.114.06 27,491.47
Current liabilities 26,403.04 25,058.96 50,046.55 37.980.71
Net asset 51,668.26 46,717.72 50,661.96 49,821.09
Aftributabie to:
Particulars As at As af As at As at

31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Equity holders of parent 26,350.81 23,826.04 49,420.74 48,600.47
Non controling interest 25,317.45 22,891.48 1,241.22 1,220.62

(vi) Summarlised statement of profit and loss of subsldiaries

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022  31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 8,695.30 32,595.30 2,499.38 1,189.29
Other income 4,954.57 2,571.38 385.10 422.93
Total 13,649.87 35,166.48 2,884.48 1,612.22
Cost of construction and development expenses 40,231.27 13,314.41 14,971.39 26,748.63

Changes in inventories of finished goods (including

Stock in trade) and work - in - progress (35,376.19) 10,639.16 (14,907.72) (26,624.96)
Employee benefit expenses 234.76 221.83 193.03 35.99
Finance cost 68.00 43.25 494.68 96.24
Depreciation 48.99 32.44 903.40 42611
Other expenses 1,773.43 474.82 2,723.62 810.01
Total 6,980.24 24,7251 4,378.40 1,492.02
Profit/(loss) before tax 6,669.61 10,440.77 (1,493.92) 120.20
Tax expenses 1,720.73 2,634.96 2,364.96 17,425.06
Profit/(loss) for the year 4,948.88 7,805.81 871.05 (17,304.86)
Share of loss from the joint venture - -
Other comprehensive income 1.65 (4.18) (4.79) (2.02)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 4,950.53 7,801.63 875.84 (17.302.84)
Attributable to:
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Equity holders of parent 2,524.77 1,632.14 854.38 (16,677.02)
Non controling interest 2,425.76 6,169.49 21.46 {625.82)
(vll) Summarised cash flow information of subslidiaries *
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 _31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Operating activity (10,979.44) (7.335.26) 1,449.50 (20,901.64)
Investing activity 3.266.26 (15,148.62) 413.20 (3,174.65)
Financing activity 1,596.78 30,652.41 (1,773.73) 24,778.86

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,116.40) 8,168.53 88.97 702.57
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless oftherwise stated)
Note 46

Employee benefits expenses
(A) Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
SMELISS 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Employer's contribution to provident fund 94.71 66.85
Employer's contribution to ESIC 1.56 2.11
Labour welfare fund contribution for workmen 0.17 0.13

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

() Gratulty (unfunded)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of
the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, or Group's Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefits would be paid at the time
of the separation based on the respective Schemes.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obllgation are as follows :

For the year ended For the year ended

—31stMarch, 2023 _ 31st March, 2022

I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 131.38 141.09
2. Interest cost 6.76 7.90
3. Current service cost 28.51 34.51
4, Past service cost
5. Liability transferred In/Acquisitions 36.41 37.65
6. Liability Transferred out / Divestment (31.31) (52.53)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer (16.13) (26.71)
8. Benefits paid - -
9. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 177 (22.40)
10. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (8.41) 13.29
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.91 {1.43)
12. Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 149.89 131.37
Il Net asset / (llablilty) recognised In the balance sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (149.89) (131.37)
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
3. Amount recognised in the balance sheet (149.89) (131.37)
4, Net (liability)/ asset- Current (40.74) {30.83)
Net (liability)/ asset- Non-current {(109.15) (100.54)
lil Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
1. Current service cost 28.51 34.51
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation {Net) 6.77 7.90
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 35.28 42.41

IV Recognised In other comprehensive income for the year

1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (8.85) (11.59)
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.75) 7.61
3. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.87 (6.57)
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -

5. Recognised in other comprehensive income (13.41) {10.55)

V Maturlty profile of deflned benefit obligation

1. Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 40.74 30.84
2. 2nd Following Year 24.30 21.51
3. 3rd Following Year 26.08 19.15
4. 4th Following year 20.87 20.03
5. 5th Following year 18.02 16.31
6. Sum of years 6th to 10 years 4411 37.72

7.Sum of 11 years and above 11.46 8.94




VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption s as below:
1. Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

(i) One percentage point increase in discount rate (3.77) (3.61)
(i} One percentage point decrease in discount rate 3.96 3.86
(i) One percentage point increase in rate of salary Increase 345 3.47
(i) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary Increase (3.33) (3.34)
(i) One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate (1.34) (1.66)
(i) One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 1.38 1.72

2. Senstivity Analysis Method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the
projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

VIl The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds NIL NIL

Vil Actuarial assumptions

1. Discount rate 7.20% 5.15%

2. Salary escalation 9% 9%

3. Mortaiity rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14

(Urban) (Urban)

4. Mortality post retirement rate

5. Rate of employee turnover 29% 30%

Notes :

(i} The actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2023. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

{ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

(i) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

Risks assoclated with defined beneflt plan

Interest rate risk:

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securities rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision.

Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset llabllity matching risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own
funds.

Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life fime and payable fill retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

(i) Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entitied to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the y 98.64 99.85



Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 47
Related party disclosure
A) List of related parties

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vil)

(vli)

(ix)

(x)

* Refired from partnership firm from 30th September, 2021
** Retired from partnership firm from 31st March, 2021

Person having Control
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

Close family members of person having control
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal (Father)

Mrs. Chanda S Runwal (Mother)

Mrs. Priyanka Runwal {Spouse)

Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal (Brother)

Mrs. Snehal Subodh Runwall (Sister in Law)

Mr. Saurabh Sandeep Runwal (Son})

Subsidiarles companles

Avalor Developers Private Limited

Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited

Sanabh Ventures Private Limited (whollyowned subsidiary during the period 13th March,2023 to 30th March,2023)

Subsidiary partnership firm
Runwal Constructions

Associate company
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
Runwal Finance (Dissolved w.e.f. 31.03.2021)

Joint venture
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Subsldiary of Joint venture

Aethon Developers Private Limited
Galleria Retail Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited

Others (entities controlled by person mentioned (i) & (ii) having control or joint control)
Anand Developers

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Subhash Runwal HUF

Runwal & Associates

Runwal Farms Private Limited
Runwal Foundation

Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Sandeep Constructions

Value Constructions SRA*

Runwal Wonder Venture**
Saurabh Runwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

Key management personnel (KMP):

Runwal Developers Private Limited

Pallavi Matkari, Director

Ravi Sharma, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022 & Resigned Wef 31-03-2023)
Sujata Rao, Director (Appointed Wef 24-02-2022)

Sanjay Daga, Director (Resigned on 15-03-2022)

Kishorkumar Jain, Director (Resigned on 27-10-2021)

Mahesh lyer, Director (Resigned on 16-05-2022)

Sweena Nair, Company Secretary (Appointed wef 01-1 2-2022)

Relative of KMP
Mrs. Babita Daga (Spouse of Mr. Sanjay Daga)




B) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

SNré) Nature of transaction / relationship
1 Sale/purchase of material and fixed assets
Sale
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R retail Ventures Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited.
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Sales Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Purchase

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited

R Mall Developers Private Limited
Histyle Retail Private Limited.

Purchase Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited

2 Sale of flats
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwai

3 Sub- letting Rent Charges
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

4 Rent Paid
Mr.Subhash S.Runwal

5 Income from project management services
R Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd

6 Investment in partnership firm/AOP
Runwal Finance

7 Advance recelved against materlal supply
Histyle Retail Private Limited

8 Repayment of advance
Histyle Retail Private Limited

9 AMC Charges
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

10 Sale of electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited

1 Business facllity services
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail Ventures Private Limited

12 Malintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

13 Maintenance service & property tax recelved
Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal

14 Dividend accrued
Anand Developers
Mrs. Chanda § Runwal
M/s.Subhash Runwal HUF
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal
* Amount is less than 500

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

17.61
0.88
0.27

2.66

4.19
594
0.86

2.66

1.00

350.00

242.57

507.17

60.00
300.00

52.37

65.78

0.64

1.25
2.98
7.84
1.21
0.92

2,086.67

35.40
826.00
2,291.48
400.00

400.00

60.00
300.00

19.55
3.59
0.01

0.1
0.01
3.21

1.34



15 Dividend Paid

Anand Developers 0.01 -
Runwal Associates 0.01 -
Sandeep Constructions 0.01 -
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 1.58 -
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal 0.06 -
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwai 0.66 -
Mrs. Snehal Runwal * 0.00 -
Saurabh Runwal * 0.00 -

* Amount is less than 500

16 Redemption of Preference Shares
Anand Developers 130.70 -
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal 4.21 -
Runwal Associates 130.70 -
Sandeep Construction 130.70 -
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 1,158.82 -
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal 113.09 -

17 Security deposit given
Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited - 24,183.93

Repaid
Horizon Projects Private Limited 4,374.00 15,542.00

18 Security deposit taken
Recelved
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 882.50 882.50
Runwal Foundation 297.00 157.35

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 882.50 882.50
Horizon Projects Private Limited 5,923.93 -

19 EMD Received
Recelved
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 500.00

Repaid
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 500.00

20 Services Recelved
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited - 59.00

21 Intercorporate deposits recelved
Taken
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 150.00 200.00
Runwal Farms Private Limited - 508.00

Repald
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 150.00 200.00
Runwal Farms Private Limited 508.00 -

22 Intercorporate deposlts given

Given

R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 1,200.00
Histyle Retail Private Limited B 917.00
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 190.00 376.00
Repald

Horizon Projects Private Limited - 9.165.93
R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 1,200.00
Histyle Retqil Private Limited - 917.00
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 235.00 331.00

23 Loan taken
Anand Developers 160.72 -

Runwal & Associates 179.72 -
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP 137.49 -
Sandeep Constructions 130.72 -




24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

37

40

Loan repaid
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Subhash Runwal
Mrs. Chanda § Runwal
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Sandeep Constructions
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Loan glven
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

loan given received
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

Repayment of Capital on Retirement
H A Visweswara
Sanjay Daga

Capltal Introduced/Withdrawn
Introduced
Nirmala Murali
Sunil Satvikar
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Withdrawn

Nirmala Murali

Sunil Satvikar

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Purchase of equlty share of R Retall Ventures Private Limited
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

Investment In equlty shares
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Investment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Redemptlon of debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Interest on debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Advertisement Expenses
R Mall Developers Private Limited

CSR expenditure
Runwal Foundation

Salary
Sanjay Daga
Ravi Sharma
Priyanka Runwal
Mahesh lyer
Sujata Rao
Sweena Nair

Relmbursement of expenses
Sandeep Runwal

Brokerage charges pald
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professlonal fees paid
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Refund of capital invested In subsidia
Value Constructions SRA

12.77

28.50
21.50
137.49
33.00
4,976.31
7,018.69

780.00
780.00

0.05
0.05

0.05
0.05

0.05
0.05

1,000.00
26.93
2500.00

313.08

35.78
90.00
30.53
39.97

7.32

1,892.21
1,182.33
134.52

2,779.00
41.50

653.00
200.00
0.50

1.20
1.80

3.00

1,000.00

54.47

297.00

168.07
19.05
£0.00

158.63

5.05

16.79
7491
100.30

3,372.43



1

42

<)

10

n

12

Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal*
*(refer note 28)

Sharing of infrastructure
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy LLP
Runwal Foundation
(Transaction of non monetary nature)

Amount due to / from related parties

Inter corporate deposit
Given
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Taken
Runwal Farms Private Limited

Inter corporate guarantee
Glven
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Advance from Customer
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Sanya Runwal Family Trust
Mr Subhash S. Runwal

Securlty deposit
TIaken
Runwal Foundation

Given
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Sundry Deposit
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr. Subhash Runwal

Investment in equlty shares
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Investment In preference shares
R Retail ventures Private Limited

Interest on Investment In debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Horizon Projects Pvt Ltd

Trade receivables
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Trade payable
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
R Retait ventures Private Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited

Brokerage charges payable
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited

Professional fees payable
Rupri Consultancy Private Limit

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

31.00

59.40
1,5613.31
91.74

454.35

15.00
115.00

0.17
1,720.86
463.00
20,313.00

7.000.00

165.98
37.73

1.38

7.17
2,900.00

0.50
45.00

508.00
22,000.00

1,513.31
91.74

157.35

10,297.93

0.17
1,720.86
463.00
3.00

20,310.00

49.02
7,000.00

137.63
58.29

5.10
1.25
91.80
2.98

7491

59.00



13 Maintenance receivables
Subhash Runwal
Chanda Runwal

14 Salary Payable
Sweena Nair
Mrs. Priyanka Runwall
Mr. Mahesh lyer
Ms. Sujata Rao

15 lease Rent payable
Subhash Runwal
Sandeep Runwal

16 Guarantee taken
Mr. Sandeep Runwal*
*(refer note 28)

17 Dividend payable
Anand Developers
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal
Runwal Associates
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal

18 Other Advances
Mr. Subhash Runwal

19 loan & Advances
Payable
Anand Developers
Runwal & Associates

Sandeep Constructions
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

3.18
3.59

1.45

5.12

2.19

1.53
0.18

6.00

132.22
158.22
97.72

5.04
7.94
2.04

0.01
0.11
0.01
3.21
1.34

6.00

4,976.31

Runwal Farms Private Limited - 7.018.69
Sandeep S Runwal - 12.77

20 Other payable
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal 114.88 -

2 Receivable /(Payabie) as retired partner
Runwal Wonder Venture - 661.45

22 Investment in debentures
R Mall Developers Private Limited - : 1,000.00

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Nature of transaction / relationship

Short-term employee benefits 203.59 440.80
Post-employment pension and medical benefits*

Other long term benefits*

Termination benefits

Share based payments

* Provision for gratuity and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis. Hence the same is not
seperately reported here for KMPs.

Total compensation pald to key management personnel
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. This

assessment Is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settliement occurs in cash.
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated flnancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 49
Segment Reporting

The Group identifies the following activities as independent segments :

i) Real estate business
i) Mall
iii) Electricity generation

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Total hegifEsiare EleriSHy, Mall
business generation

Revenues from external customers

Current year 35,490.86 29,907.81 616.13 4,966.93

Previous year 81,856.23 79.272.07 41417 2,169.99

Intersegment revenue

Current year - - - =

Previous year - - - -

Total Revenue

Current year 35,490.86 29,907.81 616.13 4,966.93

Previous year 81,856.23 79.272.07 41417 2,169.99

Segment results before exceptional items, interest,

tax

and depreciation:

Current year 12,400.44 10,938.30 406.29 1,055.85

Previous year 19,701.68 18,109.66 207.19 1,384.83

Reconclliation to profit/(loss) for the year:

Add: Finance income

Current year 1,065.48 991.87 2.1 71.51

Previous year 71411 611.63 - 102.48

Less: Finance costs

Current year 3.,220.04 2,018.76 204.85 996.43

Previous year 2,344.55 1,294.83 232.16 817.56

Lless: D ciation and amonrisati

Current year 1,424.16 251.49 218.72 953.95

Previous year 979.37 (127.04) 211.39 895.02

Add: Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures and

assoclates

Current year (4,428.81) - - -

Previous year (712.24) - - -

Profit before exceptional items and tax

Current year 4,392.91 9.659.92 (15.17) (823.02)

Previous year 16,379.63 17,553.50 (236.36) (225.27)




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Total Rearesiatel g Bechichy Mall
business generation

Add: Exceptional iftems

Current year - - - -

Previous year - - - s

Profit before tax

Cumrent year 4,392.91 9,659.92 (15.17) (823.02)

Previous year 16,379.63 17,553.50 (236.36) (225.27)

Less: Tax expense

Cumrent year 159.13

Previous year 23,351.23

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Current year 4,233.78

Previous year (6,971.60)

Segment assets

Current year 3,80,024.08 | 3,15,292.46 1,906.10 62,825.52

Previous year 3,40,584.48 | 2,67,956.94 4,126.28 68,501.26

Total assets

Current year 3,80,024.08 | 3,15,292.44 1,906.10 62,825.52

Previous year 3,40,584.48 | 2,67,956.94 4,126.28 68,501.26

Segment assets include:

Equity accounted investments

Current year 26,374.57

Previous year 30,803.55

Segment flities

Current year 2,35760.96 | 2,12,438.09 1,888.26 21,434.60

Previous year 2,00,572.79 | 1,83,181.36 2,123.55 15,267.88

Total li les

Cument year 2,35,760.96 | 2,12,438.09 1,888.24 21,434.60

Previous year 2,00,572.79 | 1,83,181.36 2,123.55 15,267.88
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 54
Financial Risk Management Objectlves and Policles

The Group principal financlal liabilities comprise borrowings, Irade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance Ihe Group operations and to
provide guaraniees fo support its operations. The Group principal financial assets include loans and advances, trade and olher receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive direclly from its operations.

The Group is exposed lo market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk. The Group senior management oversees the management of these risks, The Group senior management
ensures thal Ihe Company’s financial risk activilies are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are idenlified, measured and managed in
accordance wlith the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

a) Market risk

Market risk Is the risk Ihal Ihe fair value of future cash flows of a financial Insirumenl will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises 1hree lypes of risk:
inferest rate risk, curency risk and other price fisk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financlal insirumenls affected by markel risk include deposils, FYTOCI
investments.

The sensllivily analysls in the following seclions relate to the position as at 315t March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022,

The analysls exclude the Impact of movemenls In market variables on: the canying values of gratuity and other posl-retirement obligallons; provisions; and the non-financial
assels and liabilities of foreign operallons.

The following assumptions have been made In calculating the sensltivity analysls:

The sensltivity of the relevant profit or loss Item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective markel risks. This Is based on the financial assets and financial llabilllies held at
315t March, 2023 and 31sl March, 2022.

Interest rate risk

Interesl rale risk can be ellher falr value interest rale risk or cash flow interest rale risk. Fair value interest rale risk Is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed Inleresi bearing
investments because of fluciuations In the interest rales. Cash flow inlerest rale risk is Ine risk that the future cash flows of floaling inlerest bearing invesiments will fluctuate
because of fluciuations in Ihe Interes! rates,

The Company Is exposed to the cash flow interest rate risk due to which the future cash flows of floating intersst bearing investments flucluate because of fluctuations in the
interest rales.

The sensitivity analysls In Ihe following seclions relate to Ihe position as af 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.
The analyses exclude the Impact of movements In market variables on: he canying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial

assets and llabilifles of foreign operalions.

The following assumpllons have been made in calculating The sensitivily analysls:

The sensllivity of the relevant profit or loss Item Is |he effecl of the assumed changes In respeclive market risks. This Is based on the financial assels and financlal liabiiities held at
31st March, 2023 and 3!st March, 2022.

Parficulars Increase/decrease In existing Interest rate by Effect on proflt before tax

For the year ended 31s| March, 2023 + 1% (708.06)
Finance cost incured - 1% 708.06
For Ihe year ended 31st March, 2022 + 1% (648.00)
Flnance cost Incurred - 1% 648.00

Exposure to Interest rate risk

In order 1o oplimize the Company's position wiih regards lo Interest Income and Interest expenses and lo manage lhe Interest rate rsk, freasury performs a comprehensive
corporale interest rale risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floaling rale financlal Instruments In Its lotal portfollo, According to the Company Interest
rate risk exposure is only for loating rate bomowings. The Interest rate profi le of the Company's Inleresi-bearing fl nanclal instruments as reported to the managemenl

of Ine Company is as follows.

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Fixed rate Instrument
Financlal asset

Bank deposlts 5518.42 13,494.05

Ofher Loans 8,608.12 8,030.40
(A) 14,126.54 21,524.45
Financlal llabilitles

Preference shares - 1,672.52

Vehicle Loan 46.65 62.34
(B) 46.65 1,734.86

Varlable rate Instrument
Financial llablliitles

Term loan 68,283.90 67.873.44
Bank overdraff 4,164.67 4,003.14
€ 72,448.57 71,876.58

Forelgn cumrency risk

There Is no forelgn curency assels or liability as on 31sl March, 2023, Thus there Is no foreign cumrency risk as on 31st March, 2023.

b) Credlt risk

Credlt risk Is the risk hat counterparly wifl not meet its obligations under a financlal Instrumeni or customer contract, leading to a financlal loss. The Company s exposed to
credlt risk from Iis operaling activilles {primarlly irade recelvables} and from lis financing aclivities, including deposlts with banks and financial institullons, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial tnsiruments.

Exposure to credit risk :
The carrylng amouni of financlal assets represenis the maximum credit exposure.




Trade recelvables

Trade recelvables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from cuslomers. Credit risk has always been managed by each
business segment hrough credit approvals, eslablishing credlt limils and conlinuously moniloring the credit worlhiness of cuslomers to which the Company grants credit terms
in 1he normal course of business.

On account of adoplion of Ind AS 109, Ihe Company uses expecled credil loss model lo assess the impalrment loss or galn. The Company uses a provision matirix to compute
the expecled credll loss allowance for frade recelvables and unbllled revenues. The provision malrix takes into account factors such as defaull risk of indusiry, historical
experience for customers elc. The maximum exposure lo credll risk al the reporling date Is the camying value of each class of financial assels. The Company does not hold
collaleral as securily. The Company evaluales the concentration of risk wilh respect to tfrade recsivables Is low, as its customers are localed in several jurisdiclions and operale
in largely Independenl markets. {for Delail movement in provision for Irade recelvables - refer Nole 14}

Financlal Insfruments and bank deposlis

Credit risk from balances with banks and financlal institutions is managed by the Company's freasury depariment in accordance wilh the Company's pollcy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counierparlies and within credit limils assigned 1o each counlerparty. Counlerparly credil limils are reviewed by the Company's
Board of Directors on an annual basis. The limils are sel to minimise the concentrallon of risks and Iherefore mitigate financlal loss through counlerparty's polential failure to
make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit fisk for the components of the balance sheet at 31st March, 2023.

Loans

The loans and advances also Includes loans in the nature of advances for project and hence risk on them is minimal. Based on the above factors and hisiorical dala, loss on
collection of receivables is not material and hence no provislon was made in respect of these loans.

As at As at
Parliculars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Loans other than projecl advances 8,608.12 8,030.40
Expected credit loss nent of loans as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022,

Considering the nalure of the business, he Company has a policy to provide loans to lis group entlties for underiaking projects, based on ifs primary business model of
undertaking project developments. The loans glven fo Ihese enfities are repayable on demand and there is no past history for any defaull / delay / iregularlly in repayments
based on demands made. Moreover, all the group enlities to whom loans have been advanced, have substantial potential in Ihe projects to repay the loan based on the
valuallon of such entifles and their activities are controlled and managed by the Company. Accordingly, In view of such confrol over operallons and underlying securily of the
project / assels, Ihese loans are consldered adequalely secured for repayments, excepl in cases where Ihe Independent valuation of underlying projecis warant provision for
Impalrment.

¢) Liquidity risk

Uquldily risk Is he risk that the Company will nol be able to settle or meet ils obligations as Ihey fall due. The company's policy on liquidlty risk is to malntaln sufficient liquidity In
the form of cash and Investment in llquid mutual funds to meel the Company's operating requirements with an appropriate level of headroom. In addition, processes and
policies related lo such risks are overseen by senlor management. Managemenl monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasls on the basts of expected
cash flows. The Company has access o a sufficlent varlety of sources of funding maturing within 12 monihs can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Maturlty profile of financlal llabliities
The tabie below provides defalls regarding the remalning coniractual malurilies of financial llabliities af the reporting date based on confractual undiscounied payments.

On demand Less than 1 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total
year
As at 31st March, 2023
al ligbllitles
Borrowings - 8,729.51 60,054.76 4,780.60 73,564.87
Lease Liabllities - 1.23 3.48 - 4.71
Trade payables - 10,885.81 2.457.08 =2 13,342.89
Oiher financial liabllities 369.68 4,832.39 - - 5,202.07
Total 369.48 24.44&,94 62,515,32 4,780.60 92.1 14._‘5_4-
As at 31st March, 2022 On demand Lessthan 1 1to 5 years Mote than 5 years Total
year
FInanclal liabl|llles
Borrowings - 22,381.99 47,352.23 4,165.88 73,900.10
Trade payables - 7,202.15 2,342.44 - 9,544.59
Other financlal llabilliles - 6,056.39 B - 6,056.39
Total - ig,éﬂ,ﬂ 49.694.67 4,1&5,!8 89,501.00 |




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 55 - Business Comblnation

(A) Summary of acquisition

During the previous year, the holding company along with its Subsidiary acquired 95.72% stake in Runwall
Constructions (RC) ~ a partnership firm from its erstwhile partners, resuiting RC becoming a subsidiary w.e.f.
Ist October 2021. The acquisition would bring synergies to the Group as RC is in the same line of business as
the Parent Company.

As per Ind AS 103 “"Business Combination” the fair valuation has been determined by an independent
registered valuer as per details given below:

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition as on 1st October, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars Fair value
Property, plant and equipment 48,047.72
CWIP 1,612.96
Non current investment 1,540.70
Total non - curmrent assets 51,201.38

Current assets

Inventories 39.757.74
Financial assets

Trade receivables 540.59
Cash & cash equivalents 340.44
Loans 9.785.3]
Total current assets 50,424.08
Total assets 1,01,625.46
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12,830.75
Total non - current liabillties 12,830.75

Current llabilitles

Other current liabilities 23,779.84
Total current liabilities 23,779.84
Contingent llabliities 128.54
Total liabillties 36,739.13
Net assets 64,886.33
Calculation of Capital Reserve Amount
Total Consideration (inclusive of contribution of subsidiary Company) 8.292.35
Add: NCI based on Fair Value of net assets 2,774.67
Less: Net assets acquired {as above) 64,886.33
Caplial Reserve arising on acquisition 53,819.31

(B) Accounting policy cholice of non-controlling Interest:

The group recognises non-contfrolling interest in an acquired entity at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

(C) Revenue and profit / (loss) contribution:

Revenue from operations of Rs. 1,163.79 Lakhs and Loss after Tax of {17,304.87) Lakhs has been included in
the Current Year's Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss.

(D) Purchase Consideration - Cash Outflow:

Particulars Amount
Ouftflow of cash to acquire the stake (including amount payable before 31% March, 2022)

Cash Consideration 14,815.59
Less: Balance acguired 340.44
Net Ouiflow of Cash - Investing Activities 14,475.15

(E) There are no acquisition related costs to acquire the stake in this partnership firm.

(F) The revenue and profit before tax of the combined entity for the curment reporting period would have
increased by Rs. 398.23 lakhs and Rs. 244.65 lakhs approximately, if the acquisition date for the business
combination occurred during the year in Runwal Constructions had been as of the beginning of the annual
reporting period (i.e. 1st April, 2021).




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 56

Leases

Assef given under operating lease

The Company has recovered Rs.1,018.60 Lakhs rent from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized during the year in
respect of this is given below:

Particulars sl sval
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent income recognized during the year 2,473.01 1.346.05
2,473.01 1,346.05
Asset taken under operating lease
(f) The Company has taken Land on leave and license basis.
Details of rental expense recognized during the year in respect of this lease is given below:
Particulars gt gl
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Canying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period 106.09 107.60
106.09 107.60
(I) Analysls of Lease liability:
As at As at
Movement of lease liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening lease liabilities - -
Addition during the year /period 5.80 -
Interest Cost 0.61 -
Cash outflow towards payment of lease liabilities (1.71) -
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements - -
Closing lease liabllities 4.70 -
(liN) Maturlty analysls of lease liabilities (on undiscounted basis)
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 1.71 -
Between 1-5 years 3.98 -
More than 5 years - -
5.49 -
(iv) Lease llabllitles Included In statement of financlal position
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current 1.23 -
Non-current 3.48 -
4.71 -
(v) Impact on statement of profit and loss
As at As at
Partlculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on lease liabilities 0.61 -
Depreciation on right of use assets * 1.34 -
Net impact on profit before tax 1.95 -
Defered tax - Charge/ {credit) (0.49} -
Net impact on profit after tax 1.46 -

* Depreciatfion on ROU during the year pertains to prepaid rent - 5.97 lakhs and for leases 1.34 lakhs.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 57
Signlficant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were
prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

Note 58
Construction work In progress includes
As at As at

HaHicuion 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Approval fees 37,490.62 25,847.53
Employee benefits 9.315.42 5,819.44
Finance cost 8,811.01 5,360.48
Land 62,356.64 40,224.05
Materials & labour 48,465.54 36,860.34
Others 37,034.37 22,409.77

2,03,473.60 1,36,521.41




Runwal Developers Private Limlited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 59
Other Information

The group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any
benami property.

The Group has availed various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns or
statements of current assets filed by the Group with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of account.

The Group registered all the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period.
The Group does not have any fransactions with companies struck off.

The Group has not fraded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

The Group, its joint veniure & associate has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in ofher persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
al Group , its joint venture & associate (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Group, its joint venture & associate has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party)
with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group, its joint venture & associate shali:

Q) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Group does not have any fransaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Holding company and its subsidiaries has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Title deeds are held in the name of the respective companies.

Note 60

During the year, the Company has increased its stake in "Dhruva Wollen Mills Pvt. Ltd. (DWMPL)", by virtue of which it has established
control on DWMPL and hence it has become subsidiary of the Company. This establishment of control falls under the principle of
common control as specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 - “Business Combination”, Hence, the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been restated in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 103, from April 1,
2021.

Note 61
(i) There are no new standards that are notified upto the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements.

a) Newly issued standards
There were no standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) during the year ended 31st March, 2023.

b) Amendments in prevailing standards but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 3ist March, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015. The effeciive date for adoption of these amendments is annual period beginning on or after Oist April, 2023. The significant
amendments are as below.

(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rathr than their significant accounting policies. The
Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant on its financial statements.

(i) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors

This amendment has infroduced a definition of accounhng estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accountirg BSmates. The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the
amendment is insignificant on its financial statements. U




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply fo transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences. The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant
on its financial statements

Note 62

(i) Other than disclosed, there are no other significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as at
the Balance Sheet date.

(ii) Previous period figures have been re-grouped and rearranged whenever necessary to conform fo cumrent years's preparation,

Note 63
Events after Balance sheet date

1 The Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (the ‘Transferor') with the Company (the ‘Transferee’) has
been approved in the Meeting of Board of Directors held on 08th May, 2023. The Appointed date for the Merger is O1st April, 2023. In this
connection, a Joint Application by Transferor and Transferee Company was made to National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench
{NCLT) on 02nd August, 2023. 1st motion Order by Hon'ble NCLT has been received on 24th August, 2023. A Joint Petition has been made
by the Transferor and Transferee Company on 14th September, 2023 with NCLT.

2 On Ist April, 2023 a Share purchase agreement was entered between Avalor Developers Private Limited (subsidiary of the Company) &
Reco Ghatkopar Pie. Lid. to acquire 20,47,142 no. of share for consideration of Rs. 82,200 lakhs,resulting into increase in stake from 49.75 %

to 99.75 % at Runwal Developers Private Limited group level, thus R Mall Developers Private Limited becomes subsidary of the Company.

3 Scheme of Amalgamation of Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited with Wheelabrator Alloy Casting Limited [The Associates
Com nd their r clive shareholders :
The Board of Directors of the Associates Company at their meeting held on 23rd November, 2022 considered and approved a scheme of
amalgamation ("Scheme”) pursuant to Section 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2023, providing for the
Amalgamation of Runwal Commercial Assets Private Limited ('RCAPL") with the Associates Company and their respective shareholders
vide dated 8th August, 2023. The Associates Company had filed a Company Petition before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench {"NCLT") which has been admitted and listed for final order.
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